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The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
ERECTORS HOUSE, 5TH FLOOR NORTHERN WING, 18 KEMAL ATATURK AVENUE, BANANI C/A, DHAKA-1213, BANGLADESH

Notice of the 31ST Annual General Meeting

May 21, 2019

To: 	The Shareholders
As desired by the Chairman of the UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited, notice is hereby given that the
31st Annual General Meeting of the company will be held on June 12, 2019 at 12:00 Noon at “The Westin Dhaka”,
Main Gulshan Avenue, Plot 01, Road 45, Gulshan 2, Dhaka 1212 to transact the following businesses:

AGENDA
01.
02.
03.
04.
05.

To confirm the minutes of the 30th Annual General Meeting held on 25-04-2018.
To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Auditor’s Report along with Audited Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
To declare cash dividend out of net profit for the year 2018 as recommended by the Board of Directors.
To appoint auditor of the company for the year 2019 and fix their remuneration.
Any other business

By order of the Board
SignedMd. Faruk Hossain
Company Secretary
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Our Vision
To contribute in Socio Economic
Development process of Bangladesh

Our Mission
Invest in financially viable projects with
the private sector for Socio-Economic
development of the country

Annual Report 2018
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O B J E C TI V ES
* Make investment in financially viable projects in Bangladesh
* Promote products and services as suitable for Bangladesh
* Participate in promotion, formation, management, operation and financing of projects in
Bangladesh
* Establish subsidiary companies, participate in the Equity Capital in collaboration with
the local entrepreneurs of financial institutions to promote economic cooperation and
advancement of financially viable projects
* Promote innovation and creativity
* Implement an efficient ICT system
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Sector Wise Investment

Trade and
Commerce

Garments and
Knitwear

34%

1%

Agriculture

33%

Paper, Printing
and Packaging

Textile

1%

1%
Others (SME
Finance & Others)

28%

Housing

Power

1%

1%
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Company Information
Registered name

:

The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited

Registered office

:

18 Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh
Phone: +8802-9888203 , Fax:+8802-58810718

Company e-mail

:

ubico@dhaka.net; ubinco@dhaka.net

Corporate website

:

www.ubinco.com

Legal Form

:

A joint venture private limited company

Company Registration No.

:

C-16846(472)/87

Bangladesh Bank license No.
Shareholders

:
:

FI (non-Banking) Department /Dhaka/8/95
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development of Government of United Arab
Emirates & Government of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh

Auditors

:

ACNABIN
Chartered Accountants
BDBL Bhaban (Level- 13 & 14), 12 Kawran Bazar Commercial Area,
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Legal Advisors

:

Mr. Rafique- ul Huq, Bar. At law
Kamal ul Alam, Bar. At law
Mr. Sayed Rezaur Rahman, Advocate
Mr. Forrukh Rahman, Bar. At law

Membership

:

Foreign Industries Chamber of Commerce and Industry
International Chamber of Commerce and Industry
The Institute of Bankers, Bangladesh
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Board of Directors

Ahmed Al Murar
Chairman

Md. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman

Mushfeka Ikfat
Director

Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
Director

Zayed Ahmed Daiban
Director

Section - B

ACTIVITIES REVIEW
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Message From The
Chairman

Ahmed Al Murar
Chairman

“

We strongly believe human resources are the greatest assets and recognize
them as building blocks of the company’s performance. Recognizing “Service
Excellence” as the prime diﬀerentiator in a market of homogeneous products
and services, we continued to invest in people to enhance and upgrade their
skill sets through various training programs.

”
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Bismillahir Rahmanur Rahim
I am delighted to present you with our Annual Report 2018.
By the grace of Almighty Allah, UBICO has completed another
successful year of its operation. It gives me a great pleasure
to brief my observation on the performance of the year under
review i.e. 2018. I would like to express my heartfelt thanks &
gratitude to our respectable shareholders, valued stakeholders,
distinguished patrons and well- wishers whose co-operation
and continuous support has helped us to achieve the impressive
and steady growth.
Against the backdrop of challenging environment, I am pleased
to announce that performance of UBICO remained healthier.
While we are committed to venture capital financing in the form
of equity or quasi equity, we have diversified our investment
activities through other financial institutions and renowned
micro-finance institutions to support inclusive financing for
marginal segment of population. This is an important strategy
through which we can deploy our resources for a continuous
benefit of the economy. In line with the policy of Bangladesh
government, our focus for investment remains for development
of small and medium entrepreneurs which is considerable
portion of the total investment portfolio. During 2018, we have
achieved a better year on year net interest revenue growth of
11% and return on equity by 6%. Our company has declared
cash dividend of 25% of net profit for the year 2018.
We made constant efforts for diversifying our lending portfolio
in 2018 as we try to do always. It helped us having a distributed
portfolio across different sectors. The endeavor not only enabled
us to reach our services desirably to diversified entrepreneurs, it
also provided us with strength out of a lowered client-specific
and industry-specific concentration and overall portfolio risk.
With our steady effort, the rate of return on our financing
increased in 2018 compared to 2017. Classified Loan as a
percentage of total Loans was only 1.29 % as of December 31,
2018. This indicated better quality asset.
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actions are guided and governed by sustainability principles.
In everything we do, we aim not only to create value for our
financial partners, shareholders and employees, but also to
meet environmental and social challenges. We are committed
to observing the highest standards of integrity and regularity
compliance in all aspects of our work. Regular board meeting
and audit committee meeting, duly attended by board
members, take place.
We are also committed to participate in socio-economic
development of Bangladesh through development of private
sector. We always look for innovative ideas to participate and
achieve our mission. As part of social development, UBICO has
contributed within its capacity to a number of CSR projects in
various areas like educational promotion, health, green earth,
natural calamity, cultural sector and humanitarian causes.
UBICO always gives the highest focus on the right placement of
human resources. The company believes in certain core values
as practiced by all employees to meet the mission and the
broader vision of the organization.
We strongly believe human resources are the greatest assets
and recognize them as building blocks of the company’s
performance. Recognizing “Service Excellence” as the prime
diﬀerentiator in a market of homogeneous products and
services, we continued to invest in people to enhance and
upgrade their skill sets through various training programs. To
ensure long-term sustainability, UBICO is relentlessly pursuing
its vision to transform the human resources into human capital.
Diversely talented, motivated and engaged employees have
always been our key assets. It is the teamwork that remains the
ultimate competitive advantage, both because it is so powerful
and so rare. We always boosted of our Team spirit and this
should be sustained. Our Eﬀorts are focused on the delivery
of quality services in all areas of activities with the aim to add
increased value to shareholders’ investment and oﬀer highest
possible convenience and benefits to our partners.

Good corporate governance system is vital for efficient and
effective business operation, long-term stability and sustainable
growth for any organization. The corporate governance system
in UBICO is designed to ensure transparency and accountability
at all levels of operations. It is also ensured that duties and
responsibilities are appropriately segregated between the
Board and the management to provide sufficient check and
balance and flexibility for smooth business operations. The
Board provides leadership and direction to the management,
approves strategic and major policy decision and oversees
management to attain formulated business plan & budget of
the Company. Audit Committee reviews the risk management,
internal control and compliance process, the internal audit
reports and related compliances of the Bangladesh Bank. The
Statutory Auditors were given absolute freedom in the process
of audit and verify the compliance, risk management and
preparation of Financial Statements as per International as well
as Bangladesh Accounting Standards (IAS and BAS). The issue of
Corporate Governance is under periodical review with an aim to
ultimately develop a sound Corporate Governance system with
best practices for the company.

As per corporate responsibility, UBICO was focused on following
specific key areas namely, nation building, and enhancement
of market place, promotion of the work place, support to the
community and protection of environment. The company has
been delivering sustainable profit growth for the long-term
benefits

We believe in sustainable financing. Sustainability demands
integrity and responsibility in all financing activities. Our

Ahmed Al Murar
Chairman

of our stakeholders, building sustainable customer relationships
and demonstrating that our business contributes to the
environment, social and economic well-being of the world at
large. These activities involved not only of financial assistance
but of also highlighting our role as highly aware corporate
entity contributing towards community as a whole.
In conclusion, let me express my appreciation to our fellow board
members for their continued support and guidance. I would like
to express my appreciation to our management team for their
hard work in achieving continuous growth and excellent result. I
take this opportunity to thank Bangladesh Central Bank for their
guidance and support extended to us.
May Allah shower his blessing upon us all.
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Message From The
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dr. S. M. Akbar

Managing Director

“

Our first and foremost commitment is to contribute to the society for
improving the lives of its people, particularly the segment of the people who
are underprivileged and less fortunate in terms of basic needs and remain
alongside as sincere benefactor of the country’s rich heritage of arts, culture
and sports.

”

Annual Report 2018

15

Assalamu Alaikum,

Women Day to encourage our female employee. As a part

I would like to express my gratitude to the almighty Allah for

of company’s human resource development program,

enabling us to pass another successful year for the company.

a large number of employees were sent to different
training programs, which included both managerial and

In the year 2018, the company has attained a position,
laying strong foundation by achieving growth in all areas of
operation. We have made satisfactory achievements during
this year. Proactive involvement of prudent and efficient
management team brought this success in the performance

technical development. We have re-organized our treasury
department for handling its operation more efficiently. We
have organized a separate IT unit to gradually convert our
operation in a more efficient and less paper consuming
activities.

under the proper guidance of the Board. I express my sincere
gratitude to the Board of Directors and all of my colleagues

In UBICO, we believe that as we grow larger, our responsibility

for their great contributions to bring the company in this

towards the society grows too. UBICO therefore, invests

position. The results demonstrate that the company is on

quite considerable amounts of time and money towards its

strong social and financial footing maintaining sustainable

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Our first and foremost

growth.

commitment is to contribute to the society for improving
the lives of its people, particularly the segment of the people

By the blessing of Almighty Allah, in 2018 UBICO
demonstrated improvements in key financial indicators and
developed strong fundamentals along with a healthy capital
base. It will further strengthen position of the company in
the industry. Considering the daunting challenges in the
macro-economic environment, it is indeed gratifying to
note that UBICO could keep up the growth momentum and

who are underprivileged and less fortunate in terms of basic
needs and remain alongside as sincere benefactor of the
country’s rich heritage of arts, culture and sports. During
the year, UBICO spent a significant amount covering a vast
area of education, health and other under privileged sectors
for overall betterment of the nation. Mentionable that
considerable CSR amount was spent in 2018.

posted encouraging results.
Our company is committed to identify, monitor and manage
In 2018, despite all the challenges, we are happy to inform
that the company has maintained and achieved positive
growth in all key areas of operations. Total assets of UBICO
achieved 5% growth over the previous year. During the year
2018, we have strengthened our several operational areas.
We maintained a qualitative portfolio and at the same time
continued to take the prudent approach to manage the
balance sheet, maintain a strong liquidity position and keep a
watchful eye on asset quality. During the year, UBICO posted
a positive profit trend. The operating income and operating
profit increased by 11% and 17% respectively compared to
previous year.

the risks associated the business activities. To guard against
the risk of financial crime within our business, we focus in
training our employees, strengthening our screening system
and ensuring that our policies and procedures are effective
and up to date. To evaluate the company’s risks, we have an
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) formed by
the senior officials. We devote our efforts to minimize the
damaging effects of financial crimes on our business, our
customers, and community. Money laundering, a criminal act
recognized all over the world has very severe consequence
in the economy and security of the society. The management
has evolved such a culture for the company so that all the
employees strictly adhere to each and every provision of
Anti-Money laundering regulations. We are also sincere to

Our success is founded on ethical leadership, teamwork and

comply with the regulatory guidelines. In compliance with

a commitment in providing value for all stakeholders. UBICO

the Central Bank regulations, we have adopted proper Green

has rightly recognized that a happy team is very important

Banking, SME Financing and Money Laundering Prevention

for success of the company. We celebrated International

policies.
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Keeping in line with our mission and vision, we have adopted

micro entrepreneurs through different financial partners are

a prudent risk policy in targeting and selecting investment

engaged in various economic activities through our support.

opportunities. We always prioritize with minimum risk and

This is a remarkable achievement within such limited

maximum impact on our investment activities. Till date

capacity.

we have been successful in maintaining negligible nonperformance loan (NPL). Our Risk Management Forum
(RMF) is also fully conscious in maintaining quality of our
investment activities. As advised by the Central Bank to
minimize market risk, we have adopted sensitivity analysis
and stress testing practice. We have implemented liquidity
risk management system through proper budgeting and
forecasting of liquidity requirements.

Our organization has achieved ISO 9001-2008 certificate from
Bangladesh which has achieved the same from Bangladesh
Standards & Testing Institute (BSTI) which took a process of
over 2 years with a long step to follow and maintain. Now
we are in the process of obtaining ISO 9001-2015 certificate.

In 2019 we are committed to achieve progress made
over the last years. We will concentrate on delivering
our commitments for socio-economic development of
Bangladesh. We will continue our activities in line with
the regulatory compliances and in line with stakeholders’
expectation.

Finally, on behalf of the management team, I would like to
express my heartiest gratitude to the Chairman, Directors
of our Board for their active support, proper guidance and
inspiration. I also thankfully acknowledge the support and
cooperation that the company received from Ministry of
Finance, Bangladesh Bank and RJSC. I would like to thank
my colleagues in management team for their dedication and

Ethic is a key to business success. UBICO adheres to the

hard work to continue our successful journey.

highest ethical standards and beliefs. The company
prioritizes statutory compliance and has a code of conduct
for employees, who are required to read, understand and

Allah Hafez

follow this document. We have an Integrity Committee
which focuses on good governance. In addition, our Board
has introduced integrity award for the employees of the
company. We also arranged an integrity awareness program
for our stakeholders. The program was attended by a
considerable participants and conducted by high officials of
Bangladesh Bank.

During the year UBICO has been very active in expanding
its financing activities through various partners across
Bangladesh. As on 31st December 2018, totaling 13,658

Dr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director
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Director’s Report

Board of Director

The Directors are pleased to present the financial
results of the company as at the close of financial
year 2018 together with the Directors’ Report for the
events that occurred during 2018.
Economic Outlook
Driven by strong private consumption, public
investment and remittance inflows, Bangladesh’s
economy expanded by a remarkable 7.86% to USD
275.8 billion in 2018, recording the highest growth
rate in the country’s history. 2018 marked a 5-year run
of continuous increase in the country’s GDP growth
rate, a trend that is also forecasted to continue.
One of the most densely populated economies
in the world, Bangladesh has continued making
impressive strides in achieving social development
goals for its 167 million citizens. The resilience of the
country’s economy is commendable. However, sound
economic policy must be implemented to mitigate

underperformance of the financial sector, diversify
exports and create better employment opportunities
by increasing private investment.
Manufacturing and construction sectors were the
main propellers of economic growth in FY 2018. Readymade garment (RMG) exports, which accounted for
83.4% of total exports, increased by 8.8% in terms of
nominal dollars. Even though the 5.3% growth rate of
export earnings did not meet the forecasted target of
8.2%, the growth of the RMG industry exceeded the
annual target of 7.1%. However, the growth in the
RMG sector is dominated by a few selected products
and Bangladesh could easily take advantage of the
expanding global apparel demand by diversifying the
RMG export basket.
Given the country’s sustained economic growth and
the evolving dynamics of global trade, Bangladesh
must make a diligent attempt to expand its export

18
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profile beyond RMG products. Exports of non-RMG
products declined by 9.5%, dragging down the total
export growth rate. In FY 2018, growth of exports to
the traditional markets have out-performed exports
to the non-traditional market.
Like RMG exports, remittance flows increased by 17%
to reach USD 14.9 billion, equivalent to about 5.4%
of the GDP. About 56% of the remittance earnings
came from the Gulf countries. Driven by strong
manufacturing growth and remittance inflows, the
construction industry grew by an estimated 9.9%.
Agricultural growth was limited in early 2018 due
to excess flooding, although harvests recovered
afterwards. Low food production and weak
management of resources from FY 2017 caused food
inflation to spike to 7.1% in early 2018. Headline
inflation, which stands at 5.8%, was moderated by
low levels of non-food inflation. A fall in rice prices,
propelled by excellent boro harvests, rice and wheat
imports, eased food inflation to about 6% late 2018.
Strong remittance inflows, domestic demand and the
depreciating exchange rate helped contain non-food
inflation rates.
Public and private investment were important
contributors to the high GDP growth rate in 2018.
Real investments increased by 10.5% compared to
FY 2017. Public investment to GDP ratio increased
while private investment to GDP ratio decreased.
However, Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) declined
to USD 1.58 billion in FY 2018 from 1.65 billion in FY
2017. Bangladesh leaped up 7 places in the Global
Competitiveness Index from 2017, but it ranked the
lowest amongst its East and South Asian neighbors in
Ease of Doing Business Ranking 2018. The country’s
Logistics Performance Index has dropped over the last
two years, signaling a significant concern for local and
foreign investors.
The taka-US Dollar rate and foreign currency reserves
were strained by a rise in the current account deficit.
The risk of bad debts continued to be low despite
high fiscal deficit. During FY 2018, the taka-US dollar
rate declined in both nominal and real terms. In
the interbank market, the nominal exchange rate
depreciated by 3.9%, and the Real Effective Exchange
Rate (REER) declined by 2.7%.

The performance of the banking sector continued
to be a drag of the economy. The volume of nonperforming loans (NPLs) rose to BDT 893.4 billion in
the middle of FY 2018 from BDT 743 billion from the
end of FY 2017. In comparison to mid-2017, total
liquid assets of banks decreased by approximately 7%
by mid-2018.
Once dubbed“basket case”because of extreme poverty
following the Liberation War in 1971, Bangladesh has
achieved global recognition for making exceptional
progress in human development. According to the
Human Development Report 2018, Bangladesh is
ranked 136 out of 189 countries and territories with
a Human Development Index (HDI) value for 2017 of
0.608 which puts the country in the medium human
development category. Over the last 27 years, the HDI
value of Bangladesh increased by 57.1% and GNI per
capita increased by 178.6%. Meanwhile, Bangladesh’s
life expectancy at birth improved by 14.4 years, mean
years of schooling increased by 3 years and expected
years of schooling has also advanced by 5.8 years. The
arrival of Rohingya refugees, however, will test the
resilience of the country’s economy and its ability to
maintain the social development momentum while
providing humanitarian support.
The country has made excellent progress in expanding
electricity supply, but further steps need to be taken
to satisfy the demand for electricity which is rapidly
increasing with the growing economy. In order to
strengthen the financial position and distribution
of utilities and ensure more efficient consumption,
a cost-based pricing mechanism could be adapted.
Bangladesh could also invest on cross-border
transmission interconnections to increase electricity
supply in a cost-effective method.
Bangladesh has been forecasted to continue its
impressive economic performance and social
development in the short run. As the country
continues its remarkable progress, policymakers
should focus on a few key areas of improvement
including a stable macroeconomic structure, an
efficient financial sector and a dynamic electricity
market. Employment opportunities for the young
population should be taken into consideration while
making investment decisions. These measures will
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ensure fairer distribution of the benefits of robust
growth.
(Ref: Bangladesh Economic Outlook 2019 by
LightCastle Partners)
UBICO’s operation strategy:
The operational strategy of the UAE-Bangladesh
Investment Company Limited is to participate in the
socio-economic development activity of Bangladesh.
Its main focuses are revolved around to contribute
for (i) sustainable economic growth and (ii) social
development.
Taking into account the inherent risk factors, our
current operation is mainly focused on private sector
development, supporting existing investment,
encouraging the growth of small and medium
enterprises, promoting women entrepreneurs. UBICO
is assisting the private sector of Bangladesh to play
an increasingly important role in the socio-economic
development of Bangladesh.
Going Concern
Going concern is a fundamental principle underlying
the preparation of the financial statements of a
company. Bangladesh Accounting Standards require
Directors to consider whether there are material
uncertainties that would lead to significant doubt
about a company’s ability to continue for foreseeable
period.
The financial statements of UBICO have been
prepared on a going concern basis. In making this
assessment, the Directors have considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future
conditions covering principal activities, strategic
directions and challenges and uncertainties together
with a review of the income statement, financial
position and risk profile. In addition, the Directors
have considered the future projections of profitability,
cash flows, asset quality, the outcome of various
stress tests and capital resources in making their
assessment. After assessment, the Directors are
satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to
continue its operation for the foreseeable future and
therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.
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Fairness of the Accounts
The Directors accept responsibility for the annual
financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates,
in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), the requirements of the Companies
Act, 1994 and Financial Institutions Act, 1993. The
Directors are of the opinion that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial affairs of the Company and of its profits for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
Corporate Governance
Sound and effective corporate governance has always
been a priority for UBICO. The Board of Directors and
management of UBICO are committed to govern
and maintain Company’s operations effectively
within its regulatory environment. UBICO’s corporate
governance policies are designed to strengthen
the ability of the Board to effectively supervise
management and enhance long term shareholder
value. As a sign of good corporate governance, UBICO
obtained ISO certificate on its management system.
Financial Results & Appropriations:
The Directors are pleased to submit the audited
financial statements of the company for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
In the year 2018, the net assets of the company have
increased by 5.75% compared to last year. This is a
positive scenario in spite of volatile investment and
capital market position during this year.
During 2018, revenue from investment of the company
has also increased by 10.74% compared to last year.
This growth reveals the efficiency of operational and
financial management of the company.
The expenditures of the company were strictly
controlled throughout the year 2018 and in line with
the budget. The operating expenditures decreased by
1% in 2018 compared to the year 2017 due to strong
administrative control over expenditure.
Total loan portfolio stood at Tk 870.75 million which
was 17% lesser than previous year. We made net profit
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of Tk 87.79 million which is satisfactory compared to
the industry. Consequently, the following financial
performances have improved:
- Return on equity of 5.51% is satisfactory.
- Earnings Per Share of Tk 5,757 which is 2.93% higher
than previous year is a significant achievement.
Special Reserve
As per Article 71 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the company shall maintain special reserve
up to 20% of the paid-up capital. Existing balance of
special reserve is Tk 110,548,122 which is 11.05% of
paid-up capital. The Board approved to appropriate
20% of net profit i.e. Tk 17,558,714 (equivalent to US$
219,484 @ US$ 1= Tk 80) to the special reserve for
the year 2018. Balance of special reserve as on 31st
December 2018 is Tk 128,106,836 (equivalent to US$
1,601,335 @ US$ 1= Tk 80).
Name of the Organization/Person

Sector

Statutory Reserve
As per Central Bank regulation and as per clause 6
of the Financial Institutions Regulations, 1994, the
Directors proposed to transfer 20% of net profit i.e. Tk
17,558,714 (equivalent to US$ 219,484 @ US$ 1= Tk
80) of 2018 to Statutory Reserve. Balance of statutory
reserve as on 31st December 2018 is Tk 231,136,831
(equivalent to US$ 2,889,210 @ US$ 1= Tk 80).
Dividend
Considering the scenario of the financial sector and
current strength of the company, the Board of Directors
has recommended 25% of profit i.e. Tk 21,948,392
(equivalent to US$ 274,355 @ US$ 1= Tk 80) as cash
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Corporate Social Responsibility:
During the year 2018, UBICO has extended a fund of
Tk 1.24 million (US$ 15,496 @ 1 US$ = Tk 80) to the
following organizations:
Purpose

Anjuman Mufidul Islam

Philanthropy

• To provide blankets for distribution among
helpless cold affected people through Anjuman
Mufidul Islam.

Development Initiative for Social
Advancement (DISA)

Education

• To distribute books to the community libraries on
the occasion of International Mother Language
Day.

Rafiqul Islam (UBICO staff)

Education

• To give a token donation to Rafiqul Islam on
account of successful result of his daughter in
HSC.

K. M. Nuruddin Noman (UBICO staff)

Education

• To give a token donation to K. M. Nuruddin
Noman on account of successful result of his son
in graduation.

Development Initiative for Social
Advancement (DISA)

Environment

• To distribute Amrapali mango seedlings to the   
disadvantaged students of rural area.

Resource Integration Centre (RIC)

Health

• To organize eye camp for Rohingya and host
community at Cox’s Bazar.

Manobik Shahajya Sangstha (MSS)

Health

• To organize eye camp for school students.

New SME Entrepreneurs

Training

• To organize a training program on business
management to increase capacity building of
new SME entrepreneurs of UBICO.
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Board Meetings and AGM Held in 2018:
The four meetings (62nd, 63rd, 64th and 65th meeting)
of the Board of Directors of the company were held
on 25 April 2018, 11 July 2018, 19 September 2018
and 27 December 2018 respectively. The 30th Annual
General Meeting of the company was held on 25 April
2018.
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The directors representing the Abu Dhabi Fund for
Development as on December 31, 2018 were:
Mr. Ahmed Al Murar
Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
Mr. Zayed Ahmed Daiban

Annual General Meeting

Auditors

The 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company
is going to be held on June 11, 2019 to transact the
following ordinary businesses:

M/S ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants was appointed
as auditor for the year 2018 in the 30th Annual General
Meeting of the company held on April 25, 2018.

• To receive, consider and adopt the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 including the reports of
the Directors and Auditor

We would like to express our heartfelt thanks to the
valued shareholders, regulators, clients, partner
banks and other business associates for their valuable
support and cooperation extended during the last
year and to the company’s dedicated team of human
resources for their hard work and commitment for the
development of the company.

• To declare dividend for the year 2018 as
recommended by the Board of Directors
• To appoint the statutory auditor for the year 2019
and fixation of their remuneration

Thanking you.

Directors:
The Directors representing the Government of
Bangladesh as on December 31, 2018 were:
Mr. Md. Ashadul Islam

On behalf of the Board

Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat

Dated, Dhaka
June 11, 2019

Md. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman

Ahmed Al Murar

Chairman
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Five Years Financial Summary
As of and for the years ended 31 December
(Figures in million Taka except ratio and per share data)
2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Operating revenue

152.53

137.73

134.25

147.25

142.28

Operating profit

105.83

90.54

94.43

106.28

102.28

Net profit

87.79

85.29

84.51

105.45

104.79

Earnings per share (EPS) Taka in BDT

5,757

5,593

5,542

6,915

6,872

854.55

593.55

549.89

767.02

866.50

1,749.20

1,663.86

1,591.88

1,515.51

1,423.98

12.36

12.24

11.97

11.94

7.43

789.31

545.95

506.67

733.10

861.16

Long term liabilities

93.26

91.41

87.78

84.09

82.95

Current liabilities

65.24

47.60

43.22

33.92

5.34

158.50

139.01

131.00

118.01

88.29

Shareholders’ fund

1,590.69

1,524.85

1,460.88

1,397.50

1,335.69

Capital Employed

1,683.95

1,616.26

1,548.66

1,481.59

1,418.64

69.38

65.73

70.34

72.17

71.89

106.97

91.68

95.60

107.07

105.12

Net profit margin (%)

57.56

61.92

62.95

71.61

73.65

Operating expense to operating revenue (%)

30.62

33.43

29.66

27.62

28.12

Net interest income as % of working funds

8.91

8.36

8.58

9.78

10.03

Return on average assets (%)

5.15

5.24

5.44

7.17

7.56

104,308

99,990

95,795

91,939

87,586

Profit per employee

7.31

7.11

6.50

7.53

7.49

Operating profit as a % of working fund

6.29

5.60

6.10

7.19

7.43

Authorized capital

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

Paid up share capital

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

15,250

15,250

15,250

15,250

15,250

1,590.69

1,524.85

1,460.88

1,397.50

1,335.69

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current assets
Total assets
Property, plant and equipment at cost
Net current assets

Total liabilities

PROFITABILITY AND OTHER FINANCIAL RATIOS
Gross operating margin ratio (%)
Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax

BUSINESS RATIOS

Net asset value per share

EQUITY STATISTICS

Number of shares
Shareholders’ equity

Annual Report 2018

Graphical Presentation
Graphical Data of Business Performance

Growth of Total Assets
The total assets of the company as on December 31, 2018
was Tk 1,749.20 million compared to Tk. 1,663.86 million
in 2017 registering a growth of 5.13 percent. Despite slow
investment environment and comparatively lower interest
rate UBICO could maintain its assets growth during 2018.

Operating Revenue
Company’s operating revenue for the year ended December
31, 2018 was Tk 105.82 million as against Tk 96.43 million
of 2017. Despite slow investment environment and
comparatively lower interest rate UBICO could increase
operating revenue in 2018.

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Total Assets Growth

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating Income

Net Profit
Company’s operating revenue for the year ended December
31, 2018 was Tk 87.79 million as against Tk 85.29 million of
2017. Despite slow investment environment, comparatively
lower interest rate and slow recovery trend UBICO could
increase net profit in 2018.
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2017

2018

Net Profit

Assets value per share
The Assets value per share of the company as on December
31, 2018 was Tk 104,308 compared to Tk. 99,990 in 2017.
2014

2015

2016

Assets value per share
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Financial Review
This financial review is provided for enabling our
different stakeholders and readers to assess financial
results of operation and financial position of the UAEBangladesh Investment Company Limited for the
year ended December 31, 2018. This review should
be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statements for the year 2018.
Basis of financial review
The review has been made on the audited financial
statements of the UAE-Bangladesh Investment
Company Limited for the year ended December
31, 2018 which was prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh and local laws & regulations. Appropriate
accounting policies have consistently been applied
in preparation of the financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.
Financial Overview
In spite of volatile financial and capital market, we
made a satisfactory business growth during this year
2018.
The recovery of loan and lease installment was

remarkable during the year 2018 compared to
financial industry. In addition, we successfully
disbursed to our approved projects by which our
investment portfolio increased.
Financial Performance
The financial growth during the year 2018 significantly
increased with an increment in total operating
income by 10.74% over the year 2017. At the end of
the year 2018, total assets of the company also grew
by 5.13% compared to the year 2017.
The total expenses of the company were strictly
controlled throughout the year and were in line with
the budget.
Despite slow investment environment and
comparatively lower interest rate UBICO maintained
a positive trend of interest income on loan in 2018.
Financial Indicators:
- Return on equity for the year is 5.52% which is
remarkable.
- Assets growth is 5.13% which is a significant
achievement.
- Net Asset Value per share increased 4.32% in
2018.
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Results in 2018
Percentage of increase (decrease) in 2018 over 2017

Operating Revenue

Revenue & Expenditures

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating revenue is in satisfactory trend compared to
market scenario.
Operating Expenses

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

The operating expenses in 2018 were within budget.
Net Profit

Income from loan, leases and investments -4.30%
Income from treasury management
54.09%
Other investment income
-81.17%
Total Revenue
10.74%
Management Expenses
Financial Expenses
Provision for loans & Investment
Total Expenses
Net Profit

-1.04%
0.00%
244.85%
23.43%
2.93%

Assets and Investments
Loans, leases and advances
Fixed Assets net of depreciations
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Other Assets
Total Assets

-16.52%
-30.60%
43.98%
31.50%
5.13%

Net Assets

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

During the last five year, UBICO has a satisfactory net
profit trend.
Assets & Investments

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

The assets and investments of the company have also
a positive growth.

Shareholder’ equity and liabilities
Shareholder’ equity
Other liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

4.32%

4.32%
14.02%
5.13%

Revenue
During the year 2018, the revenue from loan, lease
and advance has decreased by 6.13% compared to the
previous year. In spite of drastic market fall, the income
from treasury management increased by 54.09% in
2018 which indicates prudent operation of treasury
management. The net profit of the company increased
only by 2.93% in 2018 over the previous year 2017 due
to recovery of regular loan and strong control over
administrative expenses.
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Loans & Investments
In the year 2018, the loan, leases and advances of
the company decreased by 16.52% compared to the
previous year due to recovery of existing loan and slow
investment trend in financial industry.
The loans and investment portfolio of UAE-Bangladesh
Investment Company Limited for the year ended
December 31, 2018 was as below:
Investment Portfolio
Power 1%

Others (SME
Finance) 28%

Trade &
Commerce 34%

Housing 1%

Garments & Knitwear 1%

Long Term Liabilities
The long term liabilities include the provision for
gratuity fund for the employees and corporate tax of
the company.
Capital Management
The framework of Capital Management has been
designed prudently which ensures that UBICO
maintains sufficient Capital consistent with its risk
profile, all regulatory requirements. The Capital
Management process is consistently reviewed by
the Senior Management as well as by the Board and
appropriate decisions is adopted from time to time
to strengthen our capital base. In view of the above,
UBICO retains a major portion of net profit in reserve
and surplus.
Retention of Profit

Textile 1%

Agriculture 33%

Paper, Printing &
Packaging 1%

Fixed Assets
During the year 2018, there are no major changes
as the company purchased some new computer
accessories and equipment.
Other Assets
The cash and cash equivalents including short term
fund increased by 43.98% in 2018 over the previous
year due to satisfactory recovery of term loan in 2018.
Shareholder’s capital and reserves
The shareholders capital and reserves of the company
increased by 4.32% compared to year 2017 due to
achievement of net profit in 2018.
Provision
As per FID circular No. 08 dated 03-08-2002, the
company made required provision for loans and
investment during the year 2018.
Current Liabilities
The current liabilities, which include the outstanding
telephone expenses, audit fee, dividend payable etc.
will be settled in 2019.

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Dividend
Considering the overall performance of the company
and in order to maintain a satisfactory capital base,
the Board of Directors has recommended 25% cash
dividend of net profit for the year 2018.
Audit Opinion
In the opinion of our statutory auditor, the financial
statements of the company give a true and fair view
of the financial position for the year ended December
31, 2018.
Budgeting
Budgeting is a strategy which acts as controlling tool
for achieving desired future outcome under changing
scenario. Budgetary achievements were reviewed
on monthly basis and variances were scrutinized for
finding necessary business directions.
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Value Creation
Our main focus is to maintain sustainable investment activities. Shareholders of UBICO deploy its
resources, i.e., equity capital to different viable projects through its various product / structure for
specific outcome. Through our activities, we help the economy to expand its size and add value in macro
perspective of the economy.
Value chain
Our shareholders provide equity fund for investment with viable projects. The project promoters
use the fund to implement projects, generate jobs, create economic value and expand national
economy.
Sustainability of value chain
The success of our company depends on the macro aspect of the country. Sustainability depends
on the total scenario of the country we operate, i.e., economic, political, social. Therefore for
any company, sustainability depends on sustainable growth or return on equity. Sustainable
return enables the company to fulfill its obligation to shareholders, employees, community.
Therefore, our company takes appropriate steps to discharge its responsibilities towards the
local community, environmental issues and relationship with other stakeholders.
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Corporate Social Responsibilities
As per charter of our company, UBICO is committed for socio-economic development of Bangladesh. Therefore
the core objective of the company is to create value for the society through its various activities. UBICO prefer to
create social values in a transparent and ethical ways.
Our CSR principles

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The company is dedicated to its vision and mission.
Shall continue our endeavor in a fair and transparent manner.
Shall pursue for high ethical standard.
Extend full respect to human dignity.
Remain compliant with local laws and regulations.
Ensure a harmonious environment relationship for employees.
Maintain proper reporting system.

Our responsibilities for Investment activities

•
•
•
•

Our company continuously looks for investment opportunities in viable projects of private sector.
We always provide professional services to make the project and investment viable.
We encourage open communication in our decision process.
We insist on ethical and transparent practices in all activities.

Responsibilities to shareholders

•
•
•

We try our best to maintain ideal corporate governance.
We provide transparent financial information and reporting.
We make best effort in maintaining sustainable return on investment.

Book Distribution to rural public libraries
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CSR Activities

Blanket Distribution for the helpless poor
people

Handover of payment for organizing Eye
Camp

Fund Distribution for Eye Care Program
for School Children
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CSR Activities

Medical support to Rohingya Refugees at
Kotupalong Camp, Cox’s Bazar

Mango Tree plant distribution to the
school students at Comilla

Mango Tree plant distribution to the
school students at Comilla
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CSR Activities

Foreign Citizen shares views on book
distribution program

School students receive Mango tree plant

Book Distribution to rural public libraries
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Training Program
Training program on Business Management for underprivileged Women Entrepreneurs.
Sustainable development of an economy lies on SME sector. For the development of CMSME sector and to
boost up the women to engage in MSME business, UBICO arranges. Training program on Business Management
for underprivileged Women Entrepreneurs at Manikgonj. Forty women participated in this residential training
program. General Manager, SME & Special Programs Department of Central Bank, inaugurated the training
program as chief guest. This program was conducted as per regulatory requirement.

Memento Handover to Chief Guest

Speech by chair of Training
Program

Training session is in progress
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Training program on Business Management for underprivileged Women Entrepreneurs

Sharing Experience by a successful
entrepreneur

Feedback session conducted by
course Co-ordinator

Memento given to lead Trainer

Annual Report 2018

Training program on Business Management for underprivileged Women Entrepreneurs

Memento handover to successful
Entrepreneur

Certificate distribution among participants

Participants at training program
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Our Green Banking
In line with global development and response to the environmental degradation, the central bank of Bangladesh
has introduced Green Banking policy and sustainable practices for all the bank and financial institutions in
Bangladesh.
The main purpose of Green Banking policy is to ensure necessary measures to protect environmental pollution
while providing services of financing customers as well as to improve in house environment management through
efficient use of various resources and to save our world for our better future through an integrated effect of all
stakeholders and build awareness among the people.
As per green banking policy of Central Bank, UBICO board has adopted a 3 Phase Green Banking implementation
plan as below:
Phase I:

Developing Green Banking Policy and show general Commitments on environment through in house
performance

Phase II: Developing and planning to sector identification strategic planning, setting in-house improvement
work, awareness build program and report to Central Bank
Phase III: Designing eco friendly prudent and prepare Green Report for external verification
By adopting the Green Banking Policy, UBICO will contribute with others to build a sustainable world in the
following manners:
-

Build up the image of UBICO among the stakeholders

-

Reduce operational cost by less consumption of office stationeries, energy and water

-

Improve productivity as well as efficiency of the employees through skilled and optimum use of technology.

-

Able to reduce possible health hazards by installing eco-friendly equipments.

-

Contribution to save the frostery by reducing paper usages

-

Emission of Green House Gases (GHG) may lessen through teleconferencing with stakeholders

-

Build up customer consciousness on environment by arranging awareness development program.
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Value Added Statement
A value added statement (VAS) is a statement showing the net added value of a business firm during a certain
period on its total transaction. The value added statement is an indicative tool that demonstrates the strength of a
company in creating wealth during the period by utilizing its capacity, capital, manpower and other resources. For
a financial institution value addition refers to the profit that is earned over the year as well as distribution of the
added value refers to dividend to shareholder, payment to employee and government and amount retained in
the business as capital and revenue reserve . A value added statement is regarded as a part of social responsibility
accounting.
31 December
2018

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

31 December
2015

150,037,148

135,056,811

132,796,490

144,972,892

2,489,552

2,677,840

1,458,168

2,273,168

Provision

18,029,051

9,919,179

1,122,870

(2,516,097)

Operating expenses excluding salary
& allowance and depreciation

20,552,700

20,767,781

15,876,291

15,884,196

113,944,949

111,714,473

108,459,188

130,238,994

Employees as salary & allowances

25,049,654

25,283,362

22,778,787

23,991,617

Shareholders as dividend

21,948,392

21,322,196

21,128,192

20,690,707

Retained in the business as capital
and revenue reserve

65,845,177

63,966,586

63,384,577

84,762,828

1,101,726

1,142,329

1,167,632

793,842

113,944,949

111,714,473

108,459,188

130,238,994

Particulars
Value Added

Net Interest Income
Other Income

Total Value Added by the company
Distribution of value addition

Depreciation
Total distribution of value addition
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Contribution to National Economy
As a financial institution, UBICO is contributing positively for the national economy of Bangladesh

Promoting
Enterprises Industry
The company is contributing
its effort to increase its investment
activities to promote SME, Women
Entrepreneur, Green Banking
Projects.

National Growth
UBICO is contributing for
national growth by increasing
its investment activities, paying
dividend, employee salary payment
etc. During the year the company
paid 25% cash dividend to its
shareholders.

Generation of
Employment

National Budget

Through our invested project, with
the expansion of economic activities,
various ente rprises recruited more
manpower to meet the growing
activities.

We contribute to the national
budget through timely payment of
VAT, AIT, Excise Duty, Supplementary
Duty, Surcharge, Source Tax etc.
During the year we have paid a
sum of Tk. 34.44 lacs.
Donation & CSR
The Company is committed to
the local society and participates
within its budget for various social
causes. During the year we have
contributed an amount of
Tk. 12.39 lacs.

Policy
Implementation
UBICO always plays a positive role
in implementing various policies of
the Government.
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Marching Towards Development
Upgradation of Bangladesh from Least Development Country (LDC) to Lower Middle-Income Country
(LMC) by World Bank.
On March 16, 2018, for the second time in the history of independent Bangladesh, the country was adorned with
a crown for its achievements in development. The first time was in 2015 when it upgraded itself to the World
Bank’s “lower middle income” category form LDC by increasing its Gross National Income. By becoming eligible
for graduation from LDC to Middle-Income Country (LMC), Bangladesh has taken its status to a new height.
Bangladesh is the only country that met all three criteria for graduation including GNI per capita, Human Assets
Index, and Economic Vulnerability Index.
On March 22, 2018, under the guidance of the Government, People across the country yesterday celebrated
Bangladesh becoming eligible for graduating to Developing Country by bringing out colorful processions and
joining rallies in festive mood.
The capital as well as other parts of the country was adorned with rally, festoons, posters, banners, and flags. Parts
of the capital and important government buildings were decorated with lights. UBICO and its employees has also
participated in the rally.
In the capital, employees of the government, semi-government, and private organizations, students of university,
colleges, and schools brought out processions to celebrate the country’s achievement.

1.

2.
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Participant of UBICO Employees in the Marching Programe

3.

4.

5.

Section - D

HUMAN RESOURCES
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Human Resources Report
Overview

Our Focus

Our human resources management are the heart of
our all activities. From the strategy as directed by the
Board leadership, our people are responsible to deliver
the plan and making UBICO a successful institution to
achieve its vision. As we continue to transform our
company vis-à-vis activities, we have worked hard to
assure that we have the capabilities in place to drive
the company forward. We have ensured that our
employees are confident, engaged and knowledgeable.
We continue to train our employees with appropriate
training including digital development.

UBICO encourage a harmonious relationship among its
employees. We adopt necessary measures to develop
and train our employees based on long term goal and
mutual necessity. We are very alert to avoid any kind of
discrimination based on religion, gender or caste.

Positive Team
It is very important that all our employees understand
our priority and objectives of socio-economic
development of Bangladesh and that they are
engaged accordingly. This understanding helps us to
maintain our ethics and confidence which in turn leads
to success of our activities.

Compensation and Rewards
Our company follows the market base compensation
policy for all its employees and rewards the deserving
employees accordingly.
Job satisfaction
Our company ensures a congenial working
environment for which we have zero employee
turnover. Moreover our employees are allowed to
express constructive feedback/opinion for welfare of
the company and individuals.
Communication

Building capabilities
As technology continues to change rapidly, we are
gradually building our capabilities to ensure continuity
of mission of our company. We provide regular
training as required by the role of each employee.
During the year 2018, we have allowed 46 training to
our employees.
Employee engagement
Despite a challenging engagement, we continuously
engage our employees through our various formal
and informal communications to ensure that our
employees update themselves in carrying forward the
objectives of the company.

Our company encourages both formal and informal
communication with substance. The company also
welcome any positive suggestion/comment for
greater benefit of all concern.
People strategy
•

Create a positive management team to achieve
vision of the company

•

Develop backup skill for each employee

•

Maintain transparency and fair dealing

•

Ensure equal opportunity

•

Extend training and development program to
employees

•

Maintain a harmonious working environment
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Employee welfare activities
Our company extends welfare activities to the employee as below:ow:
-

Housing

As per human resource policy, we provide house building financial facilities
to all employees having a minimum 10 years satisfactory service with the
company.

-

Transport

Our company provides Car facilities as required by the agreement/
assignment. Provide car loan to mid and senior level officials.

-

Provident fund

Extend provident fund facilities to all employees @ 10% of basic equivalent
to employees contribution.

-

Gratuity

-

Medical expenses

Provides Medical facilities as per Human Resources Policy.

-

Maternity benefits

Female employees are entitled for the facilities as per policy of the company.

-

Training & Development

Our company extends necessary trainings to the employees as required by
their role.

-

Annual events

We allow our employees to hold annual dinner and other yearly events as
necessary.

-

Assistance to family members

Our company provides special assistance to the family members of
employees as necessary.

-

Insurance

Our company provides group insurance facilities for all the employees.

-

Hajj Scheme

Provides Hajj scheme for all employees as per HR policy.

-

Training

Provide various professional and management training as per need
assessment for all employees.

Provides gratuity scheme for all employees as per HR policy.

Memento handover to the outgoing Deputy Chairman
of the Board

Board Members are exchanging their views
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Board of Directors meeting with employees

UBICO’s Officials attending UAE Business Conference
organized by the UAE Embassy

Developing Skill through Training

-

The Art of SME Finance and Risk Management

Our employees have joined from diversified
background. In order to attain our mission and
vision, we have a policy of training and developing
professional skill of our employees. In the year 2018,
our employees have attended 46 separate training
sessions on the following topic organized by various
organizations:

-

Best Practices Indicators/Benchmarks for SME
Financing Development

-

Women Entrepreneur Development

-

The Role of the Policy Markers and Central Banks
in Promoting SME’s Access to Finance-The case of
Bangladesh

-

Anti Money Laundering and Combating Terrorist
Finance

-

VAT & Income Tax

-

Credit Operations in Banks & NBFIs from Sanction
To Management of Risks & Recovery

-

The Role of the Policy Markers and Central Banks
in Promoting SME’s Access to Finance-The case of
Bangladesh

-

Investment in Energy Efficient Brick Manufacturing
Projects

-

Green Banking & Environmental Risk Management

Ensuring harmonious Working environment
For a better output, UBICO practices to ensure a
healthy working environment for its employees.
Healthy working environment include maintaining
a harmonious relationship amongst employees,
adjusting individual work priorities, keeping in
balance with personal crisis, providing sustainable
safety measures like – group insurance policies, family
members medical support, vaccination program,
educational leave, families holidays etc. UBICO truly
believes that employees are the driving force to
achieve its mission and vision and accords done
priorities accordingly.
Safety Training
To ensure safety to the working place, we have
provided fire fighting training by competent
authorities to all our staff members.
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Employees Report
Though establishment through a bilateral agreement

•

Our company deals with employees with due
respect and encourage a family spirit to maintain.

•

Our company extends / allows our employees
to attend professional trainings / seminars as
and when available. In 2018 our employees have
attended over 46 trainings / seminars.

•

Our employees attend all annual events of the
company.

•

We have celebrated birthday for all employee and
women’s day for female employees.

•

The Board members also meet employees on
regular interval and exchange ideas.

between the two governments, UBICO maintains a
“Equal opportunity employer” policy. Our company
is committed to maintain a harmonious working
environment for employees. We have no discrimination
in dealing with our employees based on religion, cast
or color. Our company believes in sustainable growth
based on professional quality. All our policy guidelines
are properly structured through our corporate
governance policy as duly approved by the board.

Board members meeting with employees

Discussion about Digital Bangladesh

Celebration of Employee’s new born family member
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Employees are welcoming the new
Chairman of the Board

Welcoming the Chief Guest of Training
Program

Celebration of International Women’s
Day
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Organogram
Organizational Structure
Board of Directors
Audit Committee

Dr. S.M. Akbar
Managing Director

Aminul Haque
Head of Investment

Engr. Sushanta Saha
Head of ICT

Md. Faruk Hossain
Head –
Finance & Accounts

Md. Ataur Rahman
Head –
General Services

Md. Aminul Islam
Deputy Head –
Finance & Accounts
Ms. Kourshia Fardushi
Junior Officer
Arfanul Haque
Senior Officer – Finance &
Accounts

Daulat Hossain
Driver

Md. Rafiqul Islam
Peon

Md. Jahangir Alam
Driver

K M Nuruddin Noman
Peon
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Our Team

Dr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director

Md. Faruk Hossain
Head of Finance & Admin

Md. Ataur Rahman
Head of General Services

Arfanul Haque
Senior Officer (F & A)

Aminul Haque
Head of Investment

Engr. Sushanta Saha
Head of ICT

Md. Aminul Islam
Deputy Head (F&A)

Kourshia Fardushi
Junior Officer
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Risk Management Report
Risk management is a matter of regular concern
for any financial institution. Importance of risk
management cannot be undermine at any level and
at any time. Installing a proper risk management
system can ensure a positive outcome of any
organization. Risk Management system presents a
transparent and systematic approach to identify and
tackle any risk that comes up in the regular business/
investment activities.
RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
In UBICO, risk factors are managed under guidelines,
policy and instructions as approved by the Board of
Directors. Our risk management objectives are (a) to
follow a conservative approach in identifying the risk,

(b) to strengthen the system through proper guideline
as per Central bank and other regulatory authorities,
(c) to ensure/develop proper infrastructure (d)
to pursue liable investment opportunities (e) to
safeguard resource/assets of the organization.
RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
UBICO maintain its risk management structure under
the direct leadership of its Board of Directors. The
Board approves amends or charges its policies and
strategy of risk management. Management follows
the guideline and instructions to implement the
same. All management committees are responsible
for practicing risk management policies and
guideline.

Board of Directors

Audit
Committee
Managing
Director

Management
Committee
Risk
Management
Forum

Asset/Liability
Committee

Internal
Control &
Compliance

Figure 1 : Risk Management Structure

ICT Committee
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REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT
Our management team is full alert to maintain all
required regulatory and compliance issues. We
also maintain close relationship with all regulatory
bodies and follow-up necessary rules, regulations
and guidelines as issued by various authorities. We
have a transparent Internal Control and Compliance
Framework (ICCF) policy and guidelines duly
approved by the board. Our management team and
respective department take necessary measures to
implement the same.

the company. Our company adopted due policies
to provide necessary trainings for our employees
to promote their skills. Time to time our board also
request for advises from HR consultants to upgrade
or improve various benefits/remuneration packages
for our employees to maintain uniformity of the
industry practice.
RISK FACTORS
CREDIT RISK

REPUTATIONAL RISK
Being a joint venture financial institution, our
board and management maintain high alert to
preserve the reputation of the company vis-à-vis its
shareholders. Our company prudently avoids any
kind of controversies and prioritises our activities to
fulfill Vision and Mission of the company.

Regulation &
Compliance
Risk
Reputation
Risk
Risk Factors
Human
Resources
Risk
IT Risk

PERSONNEL RISK
Our board encourages due measures that appreciates
employees for their dedication and contribution for

Assess

Risk
Management

M a nage

Evaluate

Measure
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Credit
Risk

Liquidity
& Market
Risk

Operational
Risk
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As approved by the Board and in line with the
Central Bank guideline, our company is always alert
in managing our credit risk exposure. We mainly
focus on our vision to participate in socio-economic
development of the country. Within our limitation
collaborating with other institutions, NGOs and
counterpart jointly and severally we invest with
various ventures/scheme/projects. We continuously
monitor and implement appropriate due diligence
process. In this regard we maintain a transparent

and well defined policy and procedures to follow.
Investment/credit proposals are prepared in line with
the guideline and presented to the board for necessary
decision/approval. Board holds absolute authority
over any decision. However, Board periodically reviews
and approves any amendment of related policies.
Management team carryout day to day monitoring,
following and reporting functions. We have a proper
credit/investment evaluation process as below:

START

Meeting with the client

1

Credit Officer –Investment Department

Submission of complete documentation by the client

2

Credit Officer –Investment Department

Obtaining for legal opinion

3

Legal Department

Visiting the client –drawing up the Visit Report
based on a visit to the client

4

Credit Team

Credit Analysis
Credit Risk Management Unit (CRMU)

A

Figure 2. Submission and processing of the loan application
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A

Submission of information required for preparation of
the credit decision proposal

6

Credit Officer-Investment Department

Checking the information necessary for preparation of
the credit decision proposal

7

Credit Officer-Investment Department

Modification of the information necessary for preparation of
the credit decision proposal

8

Credit Officer-Investment Department

Approval to the credit decision proposal

9

Credit Risk Management Unit (CRMU)

Yes

No

Is the analysis of the
loan application
adequate?

Presenting the credit decision proposal to the competent board
Credit Officer-Investment Department

Making decision

10

11

Board of Directors

No

Yes

B
Figure 3. Loan Application Analysis & Approval

Is approved?
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B

Preparation of the agreement and
related documentation

12

Credit Officer-Investment Department

Legal Department presents a modified Loan
Agreement and other prepared documentation

13

Legal Adviser

Signing and verification of the Agreement and required
documentation / a copy of the Agreement is presented to the client

14

Client

Back Office checks the documentation

15

Credit Administration

Yes

No

Is the submitted
documentation
complete?

Request for Disbursement

16

Client

Preparation of Disbursement memo and approval of competent
authority for issuance of cheque

17

Investment and Treasury Department

Hand over the cheque
Client

Recovery
&
Monitoring
Figure 4: Documentation and Disbursement
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Our Risk Management Environment

The Bangladesh Bank, (Central Bank of Bangladesh)
supervises and monitors risk activities of all financial
institutions in Bangladesh. Central Bank issues
guidelines/directives from time to time in this
regard. Under Central Bank guideline to core risk
management areas/activities, we have set up the
following units to address related risk:
-

Internal Control & Compliance (ICC)

-

Assets Liability Management (ALM)

-

Information Communication Technology (ICT)

-

Anti Money Laundering (AML)

As per guideline, UBICO regularly provide a report
under “Risk Management Forum” to the Central Bank
which cover the following areas:
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Under Stress Testing report, Central Bank monitors
the following areas :
-

Interest Risk

-

Credit Risk : NPL movement Investment trend,
concentration of loans.

-

Equity Risk/Market Risk

-

Liquidity Risk-Fund Management Trend (short/
Long term)

So far UBICO maintained a Green Zone Category
which is a prudent risk management trend.
UBICO monitors different risk factor under Central
Bank guideline as below:
Balance Sheet Risk

-

Number of investment proposal under due
diligence process

-

Status of Credit Portfolio

-

Status of Existing Client

-

Recovery Action Plan

Balance sheet risk can be categorized into two major
types of significant risks- liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. Changes in market liquidity and/or interest
rates expose FIs/ business to the risk of loss, which
may, in extreme cases, threaten the survival of
institution.

-

Treasury Management

Liquidity Risk

-

ICT Management

-

Business/Investment Policy

-

Market Risk

-

Stress Testing

A brief overview of our Risk Management Paper
(RMP) is presented below:-

The risk that FI or business will be unable to meet it’s
commitment as they fall due leading to bankruptcy
or rise in funding cost. FIs traditionally use the
statutory liquidity reserve and their borrowing
capacity in the volatile inter-FI money market as the
source of liquidity.

-

Portfolio Trend- Steady

Interest Rate Risk

-

Sector wise Investment- Diversify

-

Liquidity Risk – Satisfactory

-

Statutory Reserve- Satisfactory

-

CRR – Satisfactory

-

Operational Risk – Satisfactory

-

Reputational Risk- Satisfactory

-

Capital Management Function - Satisfactory

-

Stress Testing Report – Satisfactory

Interest rate risk is the exposure of a FI’s financial
condition to adverse movements in interest rates.
Accepting this risk is a normal part of financial
activities and can be an important source of
profitability and shareholder value. However,
excessive interest rate risk can pose a significant
threat to a FI’s earnings and capital base. Changes
in interest rates affect a FI’s earnings by changing its
net interest income and the level of other interest-
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sensitive income and operating expenses. Changes
in interest rates also affect the underlying value
of the FI’s assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
instruments because the present value of future cash
flows (and in some cases, the cash flows themselves)
change when interest rates change. Accordingly, an
effective risk management process that maintains
interest rate risk within prudent levels is essential to
the safety and soundness of FIs.
Capital Adequacy

The need to adopt the best international practices
given in the pretext of globalization of economies
and businesses is a must as you are aware of “Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision” and the
emphasis on maintaining the Capital Adequacy
commensurate to exposure or risk on balance sheet.
The new “Basel Capital Accord” stipulates that “FIs
must hold capital commensurate with the level of
interest rate risk they undertake”.

Composition of Credit Risk

1)

Relationship Management/Marketing

2)

Credit Risk Management-CRM

3)

Credit Administration

4)

Internal Audit/Control

ICT Risk

ICT risk arises from incidents like a minor
interruptions of service, (i.e. network is down for 10
minutes) or even from a major disaster like losing a
IT infrastructure (i.e. collapse of a server).
Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is defined as the risk of legal
sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to reputation
of the institution may suffer as a result of its failure
to comply with laws, its own regulations, code of
conduct, and standards of best/good practice.

Annual Report 2018

57

Investment Continuity Report
Beyond regulatory obligation, this report indicates
about the pro-active investment decision by the
board of the company. The Board of Directors of
UBICO has full confidence on the internal allocation
of its resources for any viable projects in the private
sector of Bangladesh. The vision of the company
is to participate in socio-economic development
of Bangladesh. The Board of Directors has made its
assessment about the availability of its resources and
expressed its positive desire to continue its activities
within its agreed internal structure. The Board is also
willing to review its future strategy to take forward its
mission in a pro-active manner. The Board is pleased
to present the following factors which may be
identified as satisfactory indicators about continuity
of its investment activities.

FINANCIAL FACTORS

Payment of Dividends
UBICO has been paying its dividend regularly. For last
few years the company paid 25% of dividend for each
year.
Performance Growth
The investment of the company has maintained a
stable percentage over the capital and reserve.

OPERATING FACTORS
Investment Activities
UBICO has diversified product portfolio as per
guideline of the Central Bank. The Board has accorded
its approval of various investment proposals by
reasonable growth over the previous year compare
to industry scenario.

Deploying its own capital:

Harmonious Culture

As per charter signed between the two Governments,
UBICO uses its own capital to invest in Bangladesh.
UBICO does not borrow any fund or takes any private
deposit in Bangladesh. As a result, the company has
only a very negligible 9.06 percent liability.

UBICO maintains a good working environment
encouraging continuous professional development
and ideal working relationship of its employees. The
company facilitates professional excellence for its
corporate environment.

Financial Support from Sponsors
The company has full assurance from its shareholders
to provide necessary funding as per Charter
Agreement.
Reinvesting its Profit
Our company has invested 75% - 80% of its profit
achieved into the activities of the company.
Operating Cash Flow
Statement of liquidity and cash flow statement show
no liquidity gap demonstrating its strong ability to
meet any future urgency.
Positive Financial Ratios
UBICO maintains positive financial ratios which
represent its strong support from its shareholders.

OTHER FACTORS
Satisfactory Capital
As per Central Bank requirement, the company is
maintaining satisfactory capital provision.
CAMELS Rating
CAMELS rating is a tool used by the Central Bank for
evaluating the health of Financial Institution. So far
UBICO has received no adverse material observation.
Stress Testing
Central Bank has formulated a stress testing
framework for Financial Institutions to ascertain its
riskbearing capacity. As on 31st December 2018
UBICO scored excellent result.

Development in Bangladesh

Investment Partner of Socio-economic

Golden tress enriches with fruit

Oppressed gain power

Eliminates the tyranny

Practicing of truthfulness
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Section - F

GOVERNANCE PRACTICE
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Governance Report
Corporate Governance Fundamentals
Being a joint venture company between two
governments, UBICO emphasis to maintain
its Corporate Governance practice based on
transparency, integrity and complaint to the local laws
and regulations.
Shareholders
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADFD) an
integral part of the UAE Government holds 60%
share and Government of Bangladesh hold 40%
share of the company. The shareholder nominated
their representative based on proportion of shares.

At present out of total five Directors seat, ADFD
has nominated 3 and Bangladesh Government has
nominated 2 directors to the board.
Corporate Structure
Success of a corporate body depends on a wellcoordinated leadership of the board and its governance
practices. UBICO operate under a specific governance
pattern as per diagram as stated below:
Board Meeting
The company as required by law holds 4 board meeting
in a calendar year.

SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

INTERNAL AUDITOR

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

MANAGING DIRECTOR

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ASSET/ LIABILITY
COMMITTEE

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

INTERNAL CONTROL
& COMPLIANCE UNIT

ICT COMMITTEE

RISK MANAGEMENT FORUM

CENTRAL COMPLIANCE UNIT

GREEN BANKING UNIT

INTEGRITY COMMITTEE
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Annual General Meeting
The 31st Annual General Meeting of the company was
held on June 11, 2019 at Westin Hotel, Dhaka.
The AGM of the Company were unanimously resolved:
a) Adopted of audited Financial Statements of the
company for the year ended 31st December 2018
and also receives and considers the Auditors’ and
directors report.
b)

Declared 25% cash dividend.

c)
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Appointed auditor for 2019 and fix their
remuneration.

Website
The company provides its basic information through
its website which is regularly updated.
Annual Report
The company provides its Audited Financial
Statements, Directors Report, Notice of AGM and other
important information to circulate among its various
stakeholders.

Board Composition
At present UBICO board is composed with the following:
1.

Mr. Ahmed Al Murar

Chairman

Nominated by UAE Government

2.

Mr. Md. Ashadul Islam

Deputy Chairman

Nominated by Bangladesh Government

3.

Mr. Zayed Ahmed Daiban

Director

Nominated by UAE Government

4.

Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh

Director

Nominated by UAE Government

5.

Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat

Director

Nominated by Bangladesh Government

Audit Committee
As per guideline of the Central bank, the role of Audit
Committee is very important to maintain sustainability
of Corporate Governance. The Audit Committee
performs a very important role as below:
• Maintaining the integrity of company’s Financial
Statements.
• Monitoring compliance obligation of the company.
• To engage external auditor as per central bank
guideline.
• Ensuring reporting of Financial Statements to the
shareholders.
• Monitoring
proper
accounting
policies,
Implementation of internal control and risk
management system.
• Monitoring internal and external audit report and
follow up of compliance program.
The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board
and reports directly to the board. Our Audit Committee
is comprising the following member of the board
representing from the shareholders:
Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
Chairman
Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat,
Member

Being part of the board, the Audit Committee attends
the regular board meeting to review the audit findings.
Audit Program
Under normal provision, the following audit program
takes place on yearly basis:
1. External audit by Statutory Auditor
2. Central Bank Comprehensive Audit
3. Central Bank Core Risk Management (CRM)
Audit
4. ISO Surveillance Audit by BSTI
5. Internal audit conducted by Chief Internal Auditor
of ADFD
The actual audit and its follow up activities continue
round the year.
Dividend Disbursement:
Dividend as recommended by the Board and approved
in the Annual General Meeting are disbursed directly
to the shareholder as per advice.
Disclosure Duties
The Financial Statements are communicated to
the respective regulators and publish the same in
two different daily (in English and Bengali) national
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newspapers. Audited Financial Statements, Directors
Report, AGM notice are distributed to the respective
shareholders.
Regular Reporting
In UBICO we provide regular reporting of status to the
ADFD on our total activities. We also provide various
information and report as and when required by
ADFD. Besides we report to other local regulators and
stakeholders as below
1. Central Bank: Monthly Report, Quarterly Report,
Half Yearly Report, Yearly Report and any other
report as and when required.
2. Ministry of Finance: Any report as and when
required.
3. Tax Authorities: Monthly Report, Quarterly Report,
Yearly Tax Return and any other report as and when
required.
Selection of Directors
The shareholders nominates their suitable officials to
represent in the board.
Directors Remuneration
As per central Bank regulation, the Board member
are entitled to receive a maximum of Tk. 8,000/= per
meeting.
Management
As authorized by the Board, the management team
headed by the Managing Director is responsible for
day to day management of the company.
Management Committee
As per Central Bank guideline, several committees have
been formed to conduct and monitor affairs of the
company, to report to the board and other regulatory
bodies as bellow:
- Risk Management Forum
- Asset / Liability Committee
- ICT Committee
- Internal Control and Compliance Unit
- Central Compliance Unit
- Corporate Governance Committee
- Sustainable Finance Unit
- SME Financing Unit
- Integrity / Ethical Compliance Committee

Each Committee have their separate role and
responsibilities.
RISK Management:
As per Central Bank guideline, we gave adopted the
following risk management policies:
- Credit Risk Policy
- Anti-Money laundering & Combating Terrorist
Financing Policy
- ICT Risk Policy
- Asset-liability Management Policy
- Internal Control and Compliance Policy
As per policy guideline, we have set up separate
committee for each area, who periodically meet and
review the risk and plan to mitigate the same.
Internal Control
As per Central Bank guideline, UBICO has set up a
comprehensive internal control system. The main
objectives of the system are to manage the existing
risk, evaluate and report to the board and concerned
regulatory authorities. Main controlling mechanisms
are:
- Regular Board meeting with specific agenda and
reporting
- Regular Management Committee and subcommittee meeting with specific agendas and
action plan
- Established corporate structure with specific
responsibility
- Specific guideline for all area of activities
- Annual budgetary system with monthly reporting
- Operation Manual for all activities
- Treasury Management and cash flow reporting
- Proper Human Resource Policy
- Extensive reporting system
Statutory Auditor
The shareholders as recommended by the Board of
Directors approve appointment of statutory auditor
and fix their remuneration. As per Central Bank
regulation, we have forward the proposal of nominated
auditor to the Central Bank for final approval. As per
regulatory provision, no external auditor can be
appointed for more than three consecutive years.
In our 30th Annual General Meeting held on April 25,
2018 M/S ACNABIN Chartered Accountants appointed
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as the statutory auditor of the company for the year
2018 and we have obtained central bank final approval
accordingly.
Accounting Practices
UBICO follows the Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh
Accounting Standard as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).
Budget
We have long practice to propose and adopt yearly
budget duly approved by the Board. The budget is
regularly monitored and reviewed by the Board.
Anti-Money Laundering
UBICO is fully compliant with the rules and regulation
of anti-money laundering and combating financing
of terrorism (AML/CFT) practices as required. Our
company does not accept any local funding, deposit
from private individuals or borrow any fund. We have
no risk in this area.
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Human Resources Management & Compensation
UBICO accord importance in managing its human
resources. Time to time, the company employs
external human resources consultant to review its HR
practices and compensation packages. The company
prefers to compensate performing employees in a fair
manner. The company also prefers to maintain a nondiscriminatory HR policy irrespective of religion, cast
or gender.
Work Environment
The company provides suitable office equipments
and working conditions for its employees. UBICO also
continues creating awareness amongst its employees
for energy saving effort, less use of powers and clean
environment.

Annual General Meeting is in progress

Audit Committee meeting with the Statutory Auditor

Employees with the ADFD & COSO Audit Team

Finance Department meeting with ADFD Chief
Internal Auditor and COSO Audit Team
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Board Structure
The Shareholders of UBICO nominates its officials to represent in the Board of the company. The Board provides
leadership in policy formation, monitor development of the company and guide the management for long term
sustainability of the company.
At present UBICO board comprises of five members (three represents ADFD and two from the Government of
Bangladesh) based on proportion of Shareholdings.
1.

Mr. Ahmed Al Murar

Chairman

2.

Mr. Md. Ashadul Islam

Deputy Chairman

3.

Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat

Director

4.

Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh

Director

5.

Mr. Zayed Ahmed Daiban

Director

Nominated by ADFD
Nominated by Bangladesh Government
Do
Nominated by ADFD
Do

Chairman of the Board
Mr. Ahmed Al Murar has been nominated by the Abu Dhabi Fund for Development as the Chairman of the Board.
The Chairman is main liaison between the board, management and responsible for functioning of the board.
Tenure of the Board member
The shareholder decides about the retirement and replacement of Board members.
Directors Remuneration
As per Central Bank regulation, Directors are entitled for Tk. 8,000/= as fees for attending each meeting.
Board Committee
As per Central Bank regulation, the board has formed the Audit Committee to perform designated role with the
following members:
Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh

– Chairman

Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat

– Member

Directors Responsibility
The Shareholders nominate the Directors to run the affairs of the company. The Directors are accountable to the
Shareholders. In the Annual General Meeting, Directors present a report on the performance of the company
for the Shareholders. Directors are responsible for developing and monitoring Governance Polices, Investment
Policies, HR Policy etc.
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Audit Committee Report
Purpose

2. Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat

The Audit Committee makes recommendations on
the reporting, control and compliance aspects of
the directors’ and the Company’s responsibilities,
providing independent monitoring, guidance and
challenge to executive management in these areas.
Its aim to ensure that high standards of corporate
reporting, control and compliance are achieved, in
the belief that excellence in these areas enhances the
effectiveness, and reduces the risk of the business.
Composition of the Committee
During the year 2018, the Audit Committee
comprised of the following Directors of the Board:
1. Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
Director of the company representing

Chairman

Member

Director of the company representing the
Government of the People’s Republic of
Bangladesh
All the members of the Audit Committee are nonexecutive Directors. The Committee is responsible
and reports to the Board of Directors. The Managing
Director and the Company Secretary attended the
committee meeting by invitation.
Summary of Terms of reference
The responsibility of the audit committee will be as
follows:
i.

To oversee and recommend to establish an
effective internal control system

ii.

To ensure the Corporate Governance of the
Company

iii.

To submit annual report to the Board

Abu Dhabi Fund For Development

Audit Committee Meeting is in progress
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Activities:

Managing Risks:

The Committee focused on the following activities
during the year:

-

Quarterly Financial Statements

-

Quarterly Operational Status Report

-

Monthly expenditure budget

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
procedures established for identifying, assessing and
managing risks. The Credit Risk Management was
invited to make presentation on Risk Management
measures adopted in their areas of responsibility. Risk
rating guidelines with an appropriate Risk Grading
Matrix has been formulated for identifying and
assessing the operational risks. UBICO’s adherence to
Risk Management measures approved by the Board is
reviewed annually.

-

Monthly Fund Position

Control Process & reporting system:

•

Review the appointment of statutory/external
auditors

•

Annual audit and internal control review planning

•

Review the following statements:

•

The effectiveness of financial controls

•

Monitoring the progress of Internal Audit

•

The relationship with auditors and their
independence; and

Financial Reporting:
The committee reviewed the effectiveness of financial
reporting system in place to ensure that the information
provided to the stakeholders is reliable and in strict
adherence and compliance to the requirements of
the International Accounting Standards as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
and disclosure requirements. The annual and interim
Financial Statements prepared for disclosure, were
reviewed by the Committee prior to submission to
the Board for approval. Having assessed the internal
financial controls, the Committee is of the view that
adequate controls and procedures are in place to
provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s
assets are safeguarded and that the financial position
of the Company is well monitored.
Regulatory Compliance:
The Company’s procedures in place to ensure
compliance with the instructions of Central Bank of
Bangladesh and statutory requirements were under
close scrutiny. The Committee monitors the due
compliance with all requirements through monthly
and quarterly reporting submitted by the management
and internal audit from time to time.

The Committee monitored the control process and
reporting system and has dedicated meeting time to
understanding issues, assess progress and report on
these to the Board of Directors.
Integrity:
The Committee has examined in details with the
finance department and the auditors for ensuring the
true and fair view of Annual Financial Statements.
Internal Audit:
The internal audit has been carried out in regular
interval. The internal auditor’s reports were reviewed
to observe operational deficiencies and follow up the
recommendations. In 2018, Chief Internal Auditor
of ADFD conducted an internal audit. Besides, ADFD
arranged a COSO audit was conducted by Price
Waterhouse Coopers in 2018.
External/Statutory Audit:
M/S ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants was appointed
auditor of UBICO at the 30th Annual General Meeting
held on April 25, 2018. The auditor has conducted their
audit on the financial statements for the year 2018 and
given their unqualified report thereon.
Central Bank Regulatory Inspection:
Central Bank has conducted several inspections
during the year 2018 and provided their observations.
We have noted the observations and approved the
response of the compliance report in respect of the
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recommendations made by the inspection team.
Monitoring by Ministry of Finance, Government of
Bangladesh:
Ministry of Finance time to time reviews our activities
as part of their surveillance accountability. Accordingly,
we submit various reports to the Ministry as and when
required.
Approval of Financial Statements:
The Audit Committee reviewed and examined the
draft audited financial statements of UBICO for the
year 2018 and recommended to the Board for approval
of the same.
Good Governance:
Highest standards in Corporate Good Governance and
strict adherence to the requirements of UBICO’s internal
regulations are ensured throughout the company.
Through implementation of good governance at all
levels staff have been educated and encouraged to
comply with the rules and regulations very strictly. The
Committee also ensures that appropriate procedures
are in place to ensure corporate good governance. In
this regard the committee has observed the activities of

Mushfeka Ikfat
Member
Audit Committee
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the following management committees constituted as
per requirement of the Central Bank with concurrence
of the Board:
•

Senior Management Committee

•

Credit Risk Management Committee

•

Internal Control & Compliance Committee

•

Asset Liability Management Committee

•

Integrity Committee

•

Anti-Money Laundering Committee

•

SME Finance Committee

•

ICT Management Committee

Acknowledgement:
The Audit Committee would like to express its thanks
to the members of the Board, Key Management
personnel and all employees for their dedication and
efforts extended during the year 2018.

Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
Chairman
Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The UAEBangladesh Investment Company Limited, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, the profit and
loss account, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the
Company give a true and fair view of the financial position
of The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited as
at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
explained in note # 2.1.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for professional Accountants
(IESBA Code) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, on the other
information obtained prior to the date of this audit report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal
Controls
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements of the Company in
accordance with IFRSs as explained in note # 2.1, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Financial Institutions Act, 1993 and the Bangladesh Bank
Regulations require the Management to ensure effective
internal audit, internal control and risk management
functions of the Company. The Management is also required
to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud
internal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances
of fraud and forgeries.
In preparing the financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance
are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and  assess the  risks of material misstatement  of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company to express an opinion
on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

i.

71

We have obtained all the information and explanation
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due
verification thereof and found satisfactory;

ii. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared
from our examination of those books;
iii. the balance sheet and profit and loss statement of the
Company together with annexed notes from 1 to 19
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books
of account;
iv. the expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the
Company’s business;
v. the financial statements of the Company have been
drawn up in conformity with the Financial Institution
Act, 1993 and in accordance with the accounting rules
and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank to the extent
applicable to the Company;
vi. adequate provisions have been made for loans and
advances and other assets which are, in our opinion,
doubtful of recovery and Bangladesh Bank’s instructions
in this regard have been followed properly;
vii. statements sent to Bangladesh Bank have been checked
on sample basis and no inaccuracy has come to our
attention;
viii. taxes and other duties collected and deposited
to Government treasury by the Company as per
Government instructions found satisfactory;
ix. nothing has come to our attention that the Company
has adopted any unethical means i.e. ‘window dressing’
to inflate the profit and mismatch between the maturity
of assets and liabilities;
x. the internal control and the compliance of the Company is
satisfactory, and effective measures have been taken to
prevent possible fraud, forgery and internal policies are
being followed appropriately;
xi. the Company has complied with relevant laws pertaining
to capital, reserve and net worth, cash and liquid assets
and procedure for sanctioning and disbursing loans
found satisfactory;
xii. the financial statements of the Company conform to the
prescribed formats and standards set in the accounting
regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank after consultation
with the professional accounting body of Bangladesh;

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

xiii. we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets
of the Company during the course of our audit and we
have spent over 550 person hours for the audit of books
and accounts of the Company; and

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Financial
Institutions Act, 1993 and the rules and regulations issued by
Bangladesh Bank, we also report that:

xiv. all other issues which are important for the stakeholders
of the Company have been adequately disclosed in the
audit report;

Dhaka,
24 February 2019
		

signedACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

72

Annual Report 2018

ACNABIN

Chartered Accountants

The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2018
Notes
PROPERTY & ASSETS
Cash
Cash in hand (including foreign currency)
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents (including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial institutions
In Bangladesh
Outside Bangladesh

2018
Taka

2017
Taka

3

54,598
30,328
24,270

84,094
57,454
26,640

4

854,554,768
854,554,768
-

593,466,482
593,466,482
-

-

-

Money at call and short notice
Investments
Government securities
Other investments

5

-

7,840,124
7,840,124

Loans and advances
Loans and advances
Bills purchased and discounted

6

870,745,002
870,745,002
-

1,043,040,651
1,043,040,651.00
-

Fixed assets including motor vehicles, office equipment
Other assets
Non-banking assets
Total Property & Assets

7
8

1,907,691
21,933,166
1,749,195,226

2,748,900
16,679,074
1,663,859,325

158,503,586
158,503,586

139,012,862
139,012,862

1,590,691,639
1,000,000,000
231,136,831
128,106,836
231,447,972
1,749,195,226

1,524,846,462
1,000,000,000
213,578,117
110,548,122
200,720,223
1,663,859,325

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities
Borrowing from other banks, Financial Institutions and agents
Deposit and other accounts
Other liabilities

9

Capital/Shareholders’ equity
Paid-up capital
Statutory reserve
Special reserve
Retained earnings
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

10
11
12
13

Off-Balance Sheet Items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements
Letters of guarantee
Irrevocable letters of credit
Bills for collection
Other contingent liabilities

-

-

Other commitments
Documentary credits and short term trade-related transactions
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed
Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments

-

-

Total

-

-

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
signedDr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director

signed-

Md. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman

signedAhmed Al Murar
Chairman

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
Dhaka,
24 January 2019

signedACNABIN
Chartered Accountants
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The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2018
Notes

Interest income
Interest paid on deposits & borrowings
Net interest income
Investment income
Commission, exchange and brokerage
Other operating income
Total operating income
Salaries & allowances
Rent, taxes, insurances, electricity, etc.
Legal and professional fees
Postage, stamp, telecommunication, etc.
Director’s fee
Stationery, printing, advertisement
Managing director’s salary & benefits
Auditor’s fee
Charges on loan losses
Depreciation and repairs of Company’s assets
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Profit before provision
Provision for loans & investment
Specific provision
General provision
Provision for diminution in value of investment
General provision for other assets
Total provision
Profit before taxes
Provision for taxes
Current taxes
Deferred taxes

14
15
16

17

Profit/(loss) after taxes

2018
Taka

2017
Taka
Restated

90,517,969
90,517,969
2,489,552
59,519,179
152,526,700

96,431,733
96,431,733
2,677,840
38,625,078
137,734,651

13,591,654
3,987,293
861,922
527,417
136,000
917,085
11,458,000
230,000
2,729,561
12,265,147
46,704,080
105,822,620

13,825,362
2,462,624
1,343,733
495,597
192,000
1,093,048
11,458,000
230,000
2,730,066
13,363,042
47,193,472
90,541,180

17,210,341
1,461,952
(748,384)
105,142
18,029,051
87,793,569

4,670,455
198,124
328,960
54,858
5,252,397
85,288,782

87,793,569

85,288,782

17,558,714
17,558,714
21,948,392
57,065,820
30,727,749

17,057,756
17,057,756
21,322,196
55,437,708
29,851,074

5,757

5,593

Appropriation to:
Statutory reserve
Special reserve
Dividend
Retained surplus
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

18

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
signedDr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director

signedMd. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman

signedAhmed Al Murar

Chairman

This is the Profit and Loss Account referred to in our report of even date.
Dhaka,
24 January 2019

signedACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

74

Annual Report 2018

ACNABIN

Chartered Accountants

The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
Cash Flows Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2018

a. Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Dividend received
Interest received in sale of Equity Share
Recovery of loans previously written off
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to suppliers
Received from other operating activities
Payments for other operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in operating assets and liabilities
Loans, advances and leases to customers
Investments
Other assets
Other liabilities
Net cash flows used in operating activities
b. Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash received from sales of securities
Net cash paid for purchase of securities
Net cash received from sales of fixed assets
Net cash paid for purchase of fixed assets
Net cash used in financing activities
c. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from loan and debt security
Cash paid against loan and debt security
Received against issuance of share
Received against investment equalization fund
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year*
*Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Cash in hand
Balance with Bangladesh Bank
Balance with other banks and financial institutions

signedDr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director

signedMd. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman

2018
Taka

2017
Taka

144,176,629
361,856

131,143,758
287,840

(23,197,045)
(599,415)
450,000
(19,976,282)
101,215,742

(21,652,957)
(763,375)
2,555,369
(20,004,406)
91,566,230

174,919,531
7,237,120
606,427
(1,360,315)
181,402,763
282,618,505

(24,357,825)
(982,973)
(1,063,374)
(26,404,173)
65,162,059

23,000
(260,520)
(237,520)

5,000
(378,000)
(373,000)

(21,322,196)
(21,322,196)

(21,128,192)
(21,128,192)

261,058,789
593,550,577
854,609,366

43,660,867
549,889,710
593,550,577

30,328
24,270
854,554,768
854,609,366

57,454
26,640
593,466,482
593,550,577
signedAhmed Al Murar

Chairman

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Dhaka,
24 January 2019

signedACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

-

Appropriation to statutory reserve

Proposed dividend for 2018

Dhaka,
24 January 2019

Balance as at 31 December 2017

signedDr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director

1,000,000,000

-

110,548,122

-

signedMd. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman

213,578,117

-

17,057,756

200,720,224

(21,322,196)

(17,057,756)

signedAhmed Al Murar
Chairman

1,524,846,463

(21,322,196)

-

-

Proposed dividend for 2017

-

(17,057,756)

-

-

Appropriation to statutory reserve

17,057,756

-

85,288,782

Appropriation to special reserve

-

1,460,879,877

85,288,782

-

170,869,150

1,590,691,639

(21,948,392)

-

-

87,793,569

1,524,846,462

Total equity

-

196,520,361

231,447,972

(21,948,392)

(17,558,714)

(17,558,714)

87,793,569

200,720,223

Retained
earnings

Net profit for the year 2017

93,490,366

231,136,831

-

17,558,714

-

-

213,578,117

Statutory
reserve

(Amount in Taka)

-

1,000,000,000

128,106,836

-

-

17,558,714

-

110,548,122

Special
reserve

ACNABIN
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Changes during the year :

Balance as at 01 January 2017

1,000,000,000

-

Appropriation to special reserve

Balance as at 31 December 2018

-

1,000,000,000

Share capital

Net profit for the year 2018

Changes during the year :

Balance as at 01 January 2018

Particulars

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
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Investment

Loan, advances and lease

Fixed assets including motor
vehicles, office equipment

Other assets

Non-banking assets

-

Total liabilities (B)

246,125

246,125

-

-

30,328 234,397,432

-

Provision and Other liabilities

Net liquidity gap

-

-

Deposits and other accounts

Borrowing from Bangladesh Bank, other
banks, financial institutions and agents

Liabilities :

-

11,423,822

-

63,289,866

-

-

159,929,869

-

30,328 234,643,557

-

Money at call and on short notice

Total assets (A)

-

30,328

Period upto
On
Demand
1 month

Balance with other banks &
financial institutions

Cash in hand

Assets:

Particulars

-

-

3,802,044

-

40,239,022

-

-

331,723,855

-

Period for
2-3 months

360,360,295

-

-

-

-

310,772,197

64,992,724

64,992,724

-

-

360,360,295 375,764,921

-

5,750,274

-

41,684,708

-

-

312,925,313

Period for
1-2 months

-

130,002

-

205,582,579

-

-

Period for
6-12 months

-

-

-

-

174,622,055 205,712,581

-

-

-

-

174,622,055 205,712,581

-

134,029

-

124,488,026

-

-

50,000,000

-

Period for
3-6 months

Liquidity Statement
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

-

-

-

-

369,975,965

24,982,906

24,982,906.00

-

-

394,958,871

-

320,008

-

394,638,863

Period for
1-3 years

The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited

-

-

-

-

2,418,191

-

-

-

2,418,191

-

274,988

1,907,691

235,512

Period for
3-5 years

(67,597,405)

68,281,831

68,281,831

-

-

684,426

-

98,000

-

586,426

-

-

-

-

Over 5 years

1,590,691,639

158,503,586

158,503,586

-

-

1,749,195,226

-

21,933,166

1,907,691

870,745,002

-

-

854,579,038

30,328

Total

Figures in Taka

ACNABIN
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The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018
1.

The company and its activities
TThe UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited, a non-banking financial institution having its registered office at
Dhaka, Bangladesh was incorporated on 11 June 1987 as a private limited company under the Companies Act 1913. The
company obtained license from Bangladesh Bank under the Financial Institutions Act 1993 on 18 December 1995.
The principal objective of the company for which it was established is to make investments in the form of equity, term
loan, lease finance, etc in financially viable projects in Bangladesh on commercial basis in all sectors of the economy.

2.
2.1

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited have been prepared on a going concern
basis following accrual basis of accounting except for statement of cash flows as per DFIM circular No # 11 dated 23
December 2009 issued by Department of Financial Institutions and Market of Bangladesh Bank with reference to the
provisions of Financial Institutions Act 1993 and Bangladesh Bank’s other circulars and guidelines or directives and in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS ), the Companies Act 1994, the Financial Institutions
Act 1993, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.								
In several cases, the laws, circulars, guidelines or directives of Bangladesh Bank differ from those of financial reporting
standards as promulgated by International Accounting Standards Body (IASB) and as adopted by national standard
setter, i.e., Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), the requirements of Bangladesh Bank prevails and
these financial statements have been prepared by departing from those requirements of BFRS with a view to comply
with the regulatory requirements .
The requirements of accounting standards as per BFRS that have been departed to comply with Bangladesh Bank
requirements have been disclosed in detail in Note - 2.27							
However, this departure with BFRS has been made by following all of the relevant provisions of BAS – 1 and the
details disclosures are given in Note - 2.27 by following the provision of Para 20 of BAS – 1 (Presentation of Financial
Statements).									

2.2	Presentation of financial statements
The presentation of financial statements has been made as per the requirements of DFIM Circular No: 11, dated 23
December 2009 issued by the department of Financial Institutions and Market of Bangladesh Bank. The activities and
accounting heads mentioned in the prescribed form, which are not applicable for the financial institutions, have been
excluded in the preparing the financial statements. 			
2.3
Components of the financial statements
The financial statements comprise of (As per DFIM Circular-11, Dated 23 December 2009 and as per the para 10 of BAS
1: Presentation of Financial Statements):
a)
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018
b)
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2018;
c)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2018;
d)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2018;
e)
Liquidity Statement as at 31 December 2018;
f)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
2.4

2.5

Going Concern
The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for foreseeable future. For this reason, the directors
continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the accounts. The current credit facilities and resources of the
Company provide sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of its existing businesses and operations.
Directors’ responsibility statement
TThe Board of Directors takes the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

2.6

Accounting for term loan
This represents short-term and long-term finance made by the company. These term loans are recorded and reported
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based on the accrual basis of accounting. Outstanding loans, along with the accrued interest thereon, are accounted for
as direct finance assets of the company.
2.7	Other assets
Any assets which do not appear as separate line item in the face of the balance sheet of the company are categorised as
other assets as per DFIM circular No # 11 dated 23 December 2009 issued by Department of Financial Institutions and
Market of Bangladesh Bank.
Other assets include advance office rent, payment of advance income tax and all other financial assets, fees and other
unrealized income receivable and advance for operation etc.
2.8	Provision for liabilities
A provision is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligations, in accordance with the BAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
2.9

BASEL II and its implementation
To cope with the international best practices and to make the capital more risks sensitive as well as more shock resilient,
guidelines on ‘Basel Accord for Financial Institutions (BAFI)’ have been introduced from January 01, 2011 on test basis
by the Bangladesh Bank. At the end of test run period, Basel Accord regime will be started and the guidelines on BAFI
has come fully into force from January 01, 2012 with its subsequent supplements/revisions. Instructions regarding
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR), Adequate Capital, and Disclosure requirement as stated in these guidelines have
to be followed by all financial institutions for the purpose of statutory compliance.
In line with Bangladesh Bank requirement, the Company has already formed BASEL Implementation Unit (BIU) to ensure
timely implementation of BASEL II accord.

2.10 Revenue recognition
“Revenue is recognized only when it is measurable and probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will follow to the company and in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 18: “”Revenue””
unless otherwise mentioned or otherwise guided by the separate BAS/BFRS.
Interest income from loans and other sources is recognised on an accrual basis of accounting on effective interest
method.“										
2.11 Cash flow statements
Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the template provide with DFIM circular no.-11, Date-23
December 2009 which is a mixture of Direct and Indirect method of BAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.
2.12 Conversion of foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Taka at rates prevailing at the respective dates of transactions, while
foreign currency monetary assets at the end of the year are reported at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains or losses arising out of the said conversions are recognised as income or expense for the year after
netting off.
2.13	Provision for doubtful accounts and future losses
Provision has been made at estimated rates on outstanding exposures, based on aging and continuous review of the
receivables, as per the Bangladesh Bank Provisioning policy. A general provision has been made by the company to
cover unforeseen losses on all leases, loans and investments excluding those for which a specific provision has been
made. The provision is considered adequate to meet any probable future losses.
2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at bank, term deposits and investment in call loan that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash (with less than three months maturity) and that are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.									
2.15	Events after the balance sheet date
All material events occurring after the balance sheet date has been considered and where necessary, adjusted for or
disclosed.
2.16	Liquidity statement
The liquidity statement has been prepared in accordance with remaining maturity grouping of Assets and Liabilities as
of the close of the year as per following bases:
a)

Balances with other banks and financial institutions are on the basis of their maturity term.
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b)

Investments are on the basis of their residual maturity term.

c)

Loans and advances are on the basis of their repayment/maturity schedule

d)

Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful lives.

e)

Other assets are on the basis of their adjustment terms.

f)

Other liabilities are on the basis of their settlement terms.						

2.17 Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged using straight-line method at the
rates varying from 10% to 25% considering the estimated useful lives of the assets. Full year’s depreciation is charged
on assets acquired within the first half of the year whereas half year’s depreciation is charged for those assets which
are acquired in the second half of the year. Depreciation is charged on a proportionate time basis for the disposal of
assets in the second half of the year. However, no depreciation is charged on assets disposed in the first half of the year.
Maintenance and repairing costs are charged to revenue as and when incurred.
2.18 Share capital
Share capital of the company is stated in Bangladesh Taka in these accounts although this is denominated in US Dollars
in the share scrip and share register and also stated in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company.
The share money contribution in US Dollars has been translated into Bangladesh Taka at the rates ruling on the dates of
receipt of such money.
2.19 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Bangladesh Taka at the mid buying and selling rates prevailing on the
dates of transactions. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency at 31 December 2018 were translated into Taka at the year
end mid exchange rate.
2.20	Provision for loans, leases and advances
Provision is made on loans, leases and advances in accordance with Bangladesh Bank’s FID Circular no. 8 dated 03
August 2002 and DFIM Circular letter no. 03 dated 29 April 2013.
2.21 Statutory reserve
As per Financial Institutions Regulation 1994, every Non-Banking Financial Institution (NBFI) is required to transfer at
least 20% of it’s current year’s profit to the fund until such reserve fund equals to it’s paid up share capital and share
premium (if any). In conformity with the above requirement, UBICO transfers 20% of net profit to statutory reserve.
2.22	Post employment benefit
The company has recognized its gratuity obligation by creating a gratuity fund in order to comply with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard-19 and Employees’ Service Rules.
2.23 Taxation
The company enjoyed tax exemption facility for a period of 10 years which expired in 2007. The company has also
obtained further tax exemption facility for an unlimited period with effect from 01-07-2012 as per SRO No. 313-AIN/2012
dated 11-09-2012. However, as per a bi-lateral agreement dated 08-06-1987 between the Governments of Bangladesh
and UAE, the company has applied to concerned authorities for allowing tax exemption with retrospective effect from
01-01-2008.
2.24	Earnings per share
The company calculates Earning Per Share (EPS) in accordance with BAS-33: Earning Per Share, which has been shown
at the bottom of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the computation of EPS is stated in note # 18.
2.25 Comparative figures
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the period ended 31 December 2018 for all numerical data in
the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for better understanding
of the current year’s financial statements.
2.26 General
i.
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.
ii.

Previous year’s figures have been restated wherever considered necessary to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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2018
Taka
3.

Cash
Cash in hand
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent
(including foreign currency)

4.

2017
Taka

30,328

57,454

24,270

26,640

54,598

84,094

851,084,552

590,045,752

3,470,216

3,420,730

854,554,768

593,466,482

770,992,253

488,335,018

Converted fixed deposit account

66,024,629

60,847,588

Savings bank deposit account

13,122,316

39,121,622

Balance with other banks and financial institutions
Local currency

(Note : 4.1)

Foreign currency
4.1 Local currency
Fixed deposit account

Short term deposit account
5.

945,354

1,741,526

851,084,552

590,045,752

-

-

Investment
Governm

-

7,840,124

-

7,840,124

Opening balance (KPCL)

7,840,124

7,840,124

Add: Investment during the year

7,840,124

-

-

7,840,124

862,187,178

1,031,150,491

Other investment

(Note : 5.1)

5.1 Investment in listed shares

Investment in Shares have been shown in cost price as
per FID Circular no. 8 dated 03 August 2002.
6.

Loans and advances
Loans and advances

(Note : 6.1)

House Building Loan to Employee

(Note : 6.2)

8,557,824

11,890,160

870,745,002

1,043,040,651

862,187,178

1,031,150,491

1,031,150,491

1,003,320,123

300,000,000

550,000,000

6.1 Loans and advances
Term loan

(Note : 6.1.1)

6.1.1 Term loan
Opening balance
Add: Disbursed during the year
Interest Receivable capitalized
Less: Realized during the year

2,623,882

125,005

1,333,774,373

1,553,445,128

471,587,195

522,294,637

862,187,178

1,031,150,491
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2018
Taka

2017
Taka

6.1.1.1 Term loan - current portion
Opening balance

451,735,401

508,992,564

Add: Addition during the year

479,820,274

465,037,474

931,555,675

974,030,038

Less : Realized during the year

471,587,195

522,294,637

459,968,480

451,735,401

11,890,160

15,237,698

6.2 House Building Loan to Employee
Opening balance
Add: Disbursed during the year

600,000
15,837,698

4,032,336

3,947,538

8,557,824

11,890,160

12,242,413

11,966,176

260,520

378,000

12,502,933

12,344,176

141,250

101,763

12,361,683

12,242,413

Opening balance

9,493,514

8,452,947

Add: Charged during the year

1,101,726

1,142,329

10,595,240

9,595,276

Less: Realized during the year
7.

700,000
12,590,160

Fixed assets
A. Cost
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Disposal during the year
B. Accumulated depreciation

Less : Adjustment for disposal during the year
C. Written down value (A-B)		

141,248

101,762

10,453,992

9,493,514

1,907,691

2,748,900

1,667,290

2,273,717

A schedule of fixed assets is given in Annexure- B.
8.

Other assets
Ad vance, deposits and prepayments

(Note : 8.1)

Income receivables

(Note : 8.2)

20,265,876

14,405,357

21,933,166

16,679,074

Opening balance

2,273,717

1,290,744

Add: Addition during the year

3,302,451

4,838,998

5,576,168

6,129,742

8.1 Advance, deposits and prepayments

Less: Adjusted during the year

(Note : 8.1.1)

3,908,878

3,856,025

1,667,290

2,273,717
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2018
Taka

2017
Taka

8.1.1 Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance rent

63,350

1,004,550

Advance against salary

860,000

574,886

Prepaid Insurance

239,173

234,212

Advance Tax

186,767

186,767

Other receivable and advance

215,000

174,858

5,000

444

ISD telephones (3 nos.)

42,000

42,000

Fax

10,000

10,000

Mobile for officers (3 nos.)

30,000

30,000

Gulshan Service Station

10,000

10,000

6,000

6,000

1,667,290

2,273,717

Opening balance

14,405,357

10,787,677

Add: Addition during the year

63,184,035

49,339,035

77,589,392

60,126,712

57,323,516

45,721,355

20,265,876

14,405,357

10,520,559

3,534,405

295,378

76,059

BO Account
Security deposits:

Mobile (5 nos.)
8.2 Income receivables

(Note : 8.2.1)

Less: Realized during the year
8.2.1 Income receivables
FDR
Converted FDR
Term loan
9.

9,449,939

10,794,892

20,265,876

14,405,357

Other liabilities
Liabilities for expenses

(Note : 9.1)

230,000

1,184,934

Provision for loans, investment & other assets

(Note : 9.2)

40,420,450

24,672,099

Gratuity fund

(Note : 9.3)

24,982,906

23,130,297

Provision for income tax

68,281,831

68,281,831

Privileged Creditors

16,125

421,506

Proposed Dividend

21,948,392

21,322,196

Interest Suspense

2,623,882
158,503,586

-

139,012,862
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2018
Taka

2017
Taka

As required by the Employees’ Service Rules of the company, employees are entitled to get gratuity at specified rates
as stated therein. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has decided and approved to create a gratuity fund in its 29th
meeting held on 11th October 2009 in order to comply with the said requirement as well as with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard- 19.
9.1 Liabilities for expenses
Telephone bill
3,000
Audit fees
230,000
230,000
951,934
Others
230,000
1,184,934
9.2 Provision for loans, investment & other asse ts
Term loan
(Note : 9.2.1)
40,260,450
21,588,157
Investment
(Note : 9.2.2)
3,029,084
Other assets
160,000
54,858
40,420,450
24,672,099
9.2.1 Provision for term loans
Opening balance
21,588,157
16,719,578
20,684,372
5,678,776
Add: Provision made during the year
42,272,529
22,398,354
2,012,079
810,197
Less: Written back during the year
40,260,450
21,588,157
Provisions for loans and investments have been made as per FID circular no. 08 dated 03/08/2002 and DFIM circular
letter no. 03 dated 29/04/2013 issued by the Financial Institutions Department of Bangladesh Bank.
9.2.2 Provision for Investment
Opening balance
Add: Provision made during the year
Less: Written back during the year

3,029,084
3,029,084
3,029,084
-

2,700,124
328,960
3,029,084
3,029,084

During the year 2018, the market price have increased and entire investment in shares have been sold, therefore the
provision during the year have been increased by Tk. 328,960.
9.3 Gratuity fund
Opening balance
Add: Provision made during the year
Less: Settlement made during the year

23,130,297
2,533,793
25,664,090
681,184
24,982,906

19,499,892
3,630,405
23,130,297
23,130,297

As required by the Employees’ Service Rules of the company, employees are entitled to get gratuity at specified rates
as stated therein. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has decided and approved to create a gratuity fund in its 29th
meeting held on 11th October 2009 in order to comply with the said requirement as well as with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard- 19.
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10. Share capital
Authorized
15,250 ordinary shares of US$ 1,000 each.
Name of shareholders
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF)
Government of Bangladesh (GOB)

Amount in equivalent Taka
% of Number of Amount in
FEX Rate
holding
shares
US$
31.12.2018
31.12.2017
60%
40%
100%

9,150

9,150,000

65.57

6,100

6,100,000

65.57

600,000,000

15,250 15,250,000

600,000,000

400,000,000

400,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

The amount of authorized capital in US Dollars has been translated into Bangladesh Taka.
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
15,250 ordinary shares of US$ 1,000 each fully paid.
The contributions by the sponsors towards share capital was as below:
Name of shareholders

% of Number of Amount in
holding
shares
US$

FEX
Rate

Amount in equivalent Taka
2018

2017

A. Initial Contribution:
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF)

60%

3,000

3,000,000

32.27

96,810,000

96,810,000

Government of Bangladesh (GOB)

40%

2,000

2,000,000

30.50

61,000,000

61,000,000

100%

5,000

5,000,000

157,810,000

157,810,000

60%

2,400

2,400,000

84.66

203,190,000

203,190,000

86.88

139,000,000

139,000,000

342,190,000

342,190,000

B. Bonus share issued:
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF)
Government of Bangladesh (GOB)

40%

1,600

1,600,000

100%

4,000

4,000,000

60%

3,750

3,750,000

80.00

300,000,000

300,000,000

80.00

C. New ordinary share issued:
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF)

40%

2,500

2,500,000

200,000,000

200,000,000

100%

6,250

6,250,000

500,000,000

500,000,000

Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF)

60%

9,150

9,150,000

600,000,000

600,000,000

Government of Bangladesh (GOB)

40%

6,100

6,100,000

400,000,000

400,000,000

100%

15,250

15,250,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Government of Bangladesh (GOB)

D. Total Paid-up Capital (A+B+C):

The amount of paid-up capital in US Dollars has been translated into Bangladesh Taka at different rates at respective
prevailing dates.
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2018
Taka
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Statutory reserve
Opening balance
Add: Transferred during the year

85

2017
Taka

213,578,117
17,558,714
231,136,831

196,520,361
17,057,756
213,578,117

This was created by transfer of post-tax profit in terms of clause 6 of the Financial Institution Regulation 1994.
12

Special reserve
Opening balance

110,548,122

Add: Transferred during the year

93,490,366

17,558,714

17,057,756

128,106,836

110,548,122

This represents 20% of paid up capital of the company which was created from post tax profit as per requirement of
clause 71 of Articles of Association of the company.
13

Retained earnings
Opening balance
Add: Unappropriated profit for the year transferred from profit & loss account

Less: Amount transfer to statutory reserve
Amount transfer to Special reserve
Amount transfer to proposed dividend

14

Term loan

16

16.1

170,869,149
85,288,782
256,157,931

17,558,714
17,558,714
21,948,392
57,065,820
231,447,972

17,057,756
17,057,756
21,322,196
55,437,708
200,720,223

90,517,969

96,431,733

-

-

90,517,969

96,431,733

1,677,696
361,856

287,840

450,000
2,489,552

2,390,000
2,677,840

59,446,546
22,998
49,636
59,519,179

38,454,710
4,999
165,369
38,625,078

52,653,548
5,471,360
86,526
1,235,112
59,446,546

33,079,070
4,053,978
94,195
1,227,467
38,454,710

Interest income
Lease and other advances

15

200,720,223
87,793,569
288,513,792

Investment income
Investment in capital market:
Profit on Investment in shares
Dividend on investment in shares of Khulna Power Co. Ltd.
Other Investment Income
Documentation charges
Other operating income
Interest on deposit with banks
Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets
Gain/(loss )on exchange rate fluctuation
Interest on deposit with banks
Fixed deposit
Converted fixed deposit
Short term deposit account
Savings accounv

(Note : 16.1)
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Other expenses
Books

14,250

3,840

-

400,000

67,135

37,271

741,793

858,748

1,320,250

1,068,000

Entertainment- office

323,869

352,547

Entertainment- business

230,050

133,493

Hotel expenses

979,188

587,507

Donations
Bank charges
Business development expenditure
Hajj Pilgrim Expense

Local conveyance

151,330

141,455

1,165,631

1,250,113

106,570

110,757

Office supplies

34,372

31,184

Subscription - newspaper & periodicals

59,828

53,620

4,821,948

5,391,105

Traveling - inland

94,970

67,907

Training - officer & staff

87,000

82,000

Uniform

41,420

42,080

VAT & duty

508,579

345,450

Wages to casual workers

148,000

130,000

Miscellaneous expenses

129,269

66,346

1,239,696

2,209,619

12,265,147

13,363,042

87,793,569

85,288,782

Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding

15,250

15,250

Earning Per Share (EPS)

5,757

5,593

Motor vehicles - POL
Motor vehicles - other expenses

Traveling - foreign

CSR Expenses

18

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Net profit after tax

19
19.1

2017
Taka

Others
Board meeting and Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ fee is paid to a Director of the company as attendance fee for attending a meeting of the Board of Directors
as per Bangladesh Bank Guideline. No other remuneration was made to the Directors for attending board meetings
or otherwise during the year 2018. Nothing is due from any Director of the Company as on the date of closing the
accounts. During the year under audit four Board of Directors’ meetings were held.

19.2

Employees’ details
Permanent employees engaged for the whole year who received a
total annual remuneration of Taka 36,000 and above

13

12
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Workers participation fund and welfare fund
SRO-336-AIN/2010 dated 5-10-2010, issued by Ministry of Labour and Employment and published in Bangladesh
gazette on 7-10-2010, declared the status of business of certain institutions and companies (like mobile operating
companies, mobile network service providing companies, all government and non-government money lending
companies, all insurance companies etc.) as “Industrial Undertakings” for the purpose of Chapter-XV of the Bangladesh
Labor Act, 2006 which deals with the workers participation in company’s profit by way of Workers Participation Fund
and Welfare Fund (WPF&WF). The Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 requires the “Industrial Undertakings” to maintain
provision for workers profit participation fund @ 5% on net profit. However, we have obtained legal opinion from
legal advisor in this regard where it has been stated that The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited does
not fall under this category. Therefore, no provision in this regard has been made in the financial statements during
the year under audit.

19.4

Capital expenditure commitment
There was no capital expenditure commitment or contract at 31 December 2018. There was no material capital
expenditure authorized by the Board but not contracted for at 31 December 2018.

19.5

Directors’ interest in contracts with the company
There was no transaction resulting in Directors’ interest with the company and no leasing facilities have been made
available to the Directors.

19.6

Foreign remittances
No remittances was made in foreign currency on account of royalty, technical experts, professional advisor fees,
interest, etc.

19.7

Contingent liabilities
Tax matter of the company as referred to note # 9 for the period from January 01, 2008 to June 30, 2012 is pending.
Except this, there was no reportable material contracts, capital commitments, events or contingent liabilities
subsequent to the statement of financial position date.

signedDr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director
Dhaka,
24 January 2019

signedMd. Ashadul Islam
Deputy Chairman
signedACNABIN
Chartered Accountants

signedAhmed Al Murar
Chairman
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AT A GLANCE
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Investment Activities

Signing Ceremony with financial partner

Signing Ceremony with financial partner

UAE Ambassador Exchanging views in
UAE Business Conference
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Investment Activities

Attending the UAE Business Conference
organized by UAE Embassy

UAE Ambassador inaugurating the
Annual Report of UBICO

UAE Business Conference is in Progress
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Investment Activities

UAE Business Conference and
Networking Session

Board Members meet with the Investment
Partner

Financial Partner briefs their project to
the board members
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Project Visit

Visiting Vegetable Cultivation project

Visiting organic vegetable pilot project

Bio-Compost Fertilizer Project

93

94

Annual Report 2018

Project Visit

Visiting Black Bengal Goat Farming
Project

Visiting office of Investment Partner

Participation in Women Entrepreneur
SME-Fair
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Project Visit

Meeting with the Entrepreneur

Visiting Old Home – Pirojpur

Distribution Gift to Senior Citizen
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Project Visit

Exchanging views with Senior Citizen
and attending Cultural Program

Visiting Fishery Project
Kishoregonj

Tailoring Training Program for Women
Entrepreneur

